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Characteristics of the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange’)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk may be
attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.
The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquires, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

2012 is a year of recovery for Venturepharm Laboratories Limited
(the group). Because Pharmaceutical development service (PDS),
the former major business of the group was heavily hurt in 2011,
the group had to start a business reconstruction in 2011. The
Group abandoned PDS business and focused on clinical services
and post-marketing clinical services. The group had made some
achievements under this business strategy in 2012. In 2012,
turnover of the group increased rapidly and recorded a profit
compared with loss in 2011.

Strategic and Operational Highlights

The contracted pharmaceutical research(CRO) market had sharply
extended from discovery to clinical services and post-marketing
clinical services. The main market of CRO industry will be clinical
services and post-marketing clinical services. The group had
adjusted the strategy position to meet the market change. Our
strategy will changed from integrated services to focusing on
clinical services and post-marketing clinical services.

The group is a major clinical services organization in China that
provides global clinical, preclinical and regulatory affair services.
It is a leader in oncology, hepatitis, vaccine, CNS, cardiovascular,
hematology, diabetes, allergy and immunology. The Company
heavily invests in establishing clinical research operation units to
drive the future growth of the Company:

VPS Clinical is international listed company that take a
leading position in clinical trail base in China. VPS Clinical
focuses on innovation drug and MCT(Multiple Center
Clinical Trial), it is a clinical trail research organization
famous in greater, faster, better and more economic.

. VPRA-Porsche Center, Safe arrival at full speed ahead,
First and Best in Class for ten years.

. VPS-mart Postmarketing,clinical research institute of drug
postmarketing,the leader for clinical research and medical

services in Asia.

. CNS-VPS Institute, Clinical Research Institute of
Neuropsychiatry, pain treatment center.

. Vacc-VPS intitute, Vaccine clinical research base in China.
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. Onc-VPS, Cancer and AIDS clinical research centre.

«  Diab-VPS, clinical research Centre of Endocrinology and
Diabetes.

. CV-VP Cardiovascular Pacific-Asia clinical research
center.

. SAS-Venturepharm data management and medical
statistics center.

Exciting Future

Looking ahead, we remain confident that we will be at the
forefront in capitalizing upon the global outsourcing opportunity
as it unfolds. The Chinese pharmaceutical industry is experiencing
consolidation amongst key players, a trend which is expected to
gain momentum in the future. While striving unceasingly to
exercise strong leadership in the industry in China, we remain
firmly committed to unlocking shareholder value through the
delivery of high quality service solutions.

In closing, I would like to thank the management and all of our
employees for their dedication and commitment. On behalf of
everyone at Venturepharm, we extend our sincerest appreciation
to our shareholders for their continuing repose of confidence in the
Company. We will deliver improved value in 2013 and the years
to come. We look forward to your ongoing support and to sharing
this dynamic growth phase of our journey with you.

By order of the Board
William Xia Guo

Chairman

29 May 2013
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Year ended 31 December
BE+A=1T—HILEE
2012 2011
—F-T4F ZE -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
NE¥T T NEHT T
Results By
Revenue g 28,688 18,099
Profit/(Loss) for the year AE A/ GER) 3,118 (153,796)
Assets and Liabilities e B A
Total Assets APt pE 41,471 37,968
Total Liabilities A i 135,658 134,720
Shareholders’ equity I ES (94,187) (96,752)

1.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, consolidated
turnover of the Group amounted to RMB28,688,000
representing an increase of 58% compared with
RMB18,099,000 of last year

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the profit before
income tax of the Group was RMB 3,231,000 compared

with loss of RMB 149,772,000 of last year.

BE-Z— 4+ A= —H I EE AR5 W
S 2 A N\ ¥R 28,688,0000C, B F——[F

B2 2 N4 N\ F18,009,0007C_EFHA58%.

HE R+ HE+—HIMEEAERE
BRI R A 40 N ¥ 3,231,0007T, T —F—

— B HA R AT A5 TR A H  BEE149,772,000 7T
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RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, consolidated turnover
amounted to RMB 28,688,000 representing an increase of 58%
compared with RMB 18,099,000 of last year. The 2012
consolidated turnover included approximately RMB 11,695,000
was derived from contracted pharmaceutical development
services (PDS) and approximately RMB 16,492,000 from
contracted clinical research services (VPS) .In terms of revenue
structure, the revenue of VPS amounted to 57% of the total
revenue, which was increased by 19% compared with that of last
year. The revenue of PDS increased by 334% compared with that
of last year and amounted to 41% of the total revenue.

The overall gross profit margin was 43% compared with 39% in
last year, which was related to the rise of revenue and decreased
weight of cost amortised.

Convertible Bonds

On 10 September 2007, Venturepharm Laboratories Limited,
issued bonds of an aggregate principal amount of CHF15,000,000
(the “Bonds™), which was expired in 9 September 2012. On 4
September 2012, the Bondholders passed the Resolution to
extend the maturity date of the Notes to 10 September 2015 and
to alter the coupon applicable in the extended tenor from 3.5% to
4.0%.

The change in fair value of the convertible bonds during the year
resulted in a gain from changes in fair value of approximately
RMB 16,283,000 in 2012 (2011 loss: approximately RMB
4,546,000), which has been recorded as “gain/(Loss) on revaluation
of convertible bonds” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Interest and other expenses of approximately RMB 3,715,000
(2011: RMB 3,851,000) has been recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income in respect of the convertible bonds for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

At 31 December 2012, the carrying amounts and fair value of the

non-current convertible bonds for the Group amounted
approximately of RMB 91,875,000 (2011: RMB Nil).

| VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
RATIO

During the year, the Group maintained a sound financial position
and prudent liquidity risk management, and had sufficient cash to

meet the need of its business development.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had current liabilities of
approximately RMB 43,783,000 among which approximately
RMB 23,475,000 of receipts in advance from customers. Most of
the receipts in advance would be recognised as revenue in 2013
and later years, and will not lead to any cash outflow in future.
Excluding receipts in advance the current ratio (current
asset/current liabilities) of the Group as at 31 December 2012 was
1.57.

Meanwhile, considering the working capital and long term fund
demand for future development, the Group will consider to raise
funds through bank loans, issuance of new shares, convertible
bonds, and issuance of new debts, etc.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year, the Group's transactions were substantially
denominated in Renminbi ("RMB"). The Group closely monitors
its foreign currency risk from time to time and will use
appropriate hedging when necessary.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Aiming at long-term development and based on its business
transformation strategy of transforming from a leading
technology transfer supplier to an enterprise integrating
pharmaceutical development and products commercialization
services, the Group continued to expand its product lines and
accelerate the establishment of the marketing network so as to

rapidly capture its market share.

The Group has managed to establish a comprehensive
value-added business mode for whole value chains such as Active
Pharmaceutical Ingredient (API), Pharmaceutical Development
service (PDS), Clinical Research Service (VPS), regulatory affair
(RA) service and post market service (PMS), thereby enhancing
the long-term profitability and risk resistance capability of the
Group.
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SALES AND MARKETING

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group had signed 40
new contracts with contract value of approximately RMB
51,989,000 representing a decrease of 11% compared to
RMB58,304,000 in 2011 as the Group’s new strategy was
accepted by market and customers. Those contracts will generate

stable revenue for the Group.

The Group continued its investment in the enhancement of
marketing capability and the expansion of market network, and
introduced new technologies in the domestic market under the
brand of Venturepharm while striving to establish and expand
overseas markets under the brand of VPS-CRO. During the year,
the Group not only focused on business expansion, but also paid
more attention to the enhancement of brand value and the
improvement of professional capability, aiming at becoming a
comprehensive and reliable technology and service provider with
the most prestigious brand and leading technologies.

CLINICAL RESEARCH SERVICE (VPS)

Taken clinical study as the prime focus, the Group has established
the most integrated service in the country, which provides a series
of services ranging from phase I clinical and bicequivalence
studies, phase II-III clinical studies, and phase IV post-marketing
clinical study, to data management and medical statistics, and
medical administration related service. Meanwhile, the Group
makes a great efforts to improve the professional capability
involving the above mentioned services and has preliminarily
established 13 professional research institutions including
Venturepharm-CBI phase I clinical research center, VPS-mart
phase IV clinical research and academic promotion center,
SAS-Venturepharm data management and medical statistics
center, VP-Porsche RA service center, OHH-VP Pacific-Asia
clinical research institution for oncology, TangXi-VP Pacific-Asia
clinical research institution for Diabetes, CNSVP
Psychoneurologic and pain management Pacific-Asia clinical
research institution, CV-VP Cardiovascular Pacific-Asia clinical
research center, AIDS and hepatitis Pacific-Asia clinical research
institution, DermNova Pacific-Asia clinical research institution for
dermatosis and gynecologic disease and TCM-VP clinical research
center for natural drug and traditional Chinese medicine, etc.

| VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED
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In the meantime, the Group has built a nation-wide network with
bases in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou and offices in over
30provincial capital cities for clinical monitoring and academic
promotion, covering over 80% hospitals which have been
authorized to conduct clinical research. The Group has the capacity of
operating more than 60 phase I and BE projects each year and
conducting 50 phase II-III clinical projects simultaneously.
Meanwhile, the Group is able to carry out 4 phase IV clinical trials
with large sample size (2,000 subjects) at the same period.

PHARMCEUTICAL DEVELOPMENT SERVICE (PDS)

In 2011, the Company changed the business strategy of PDS. The
Company had ceased the investment on PDS projects without
customer contract and will start a new PDS project only after
signing a customer contract.

In 2012, the Company focused on the short term PDS projects
with customer contracts, which were comparatively less risky.

PROSPECTS

To capitalize on the opportunity of the increased demand of global
R&D outsourcing market, the Group has made the best efforts to
improve its service capacities and performance in R&D
outsourcing services by providing fully integrated pharmaceutical
services which including Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient (API),
Pharmaceutical Development service (PDS), Clinical Research
Service (VPS), regulatory affair (RA) service and post market
service (PMS). In the meantime, the Group believes that as the
Government further standardizes and implements its supervision,
the market environment will become more favorable to the Group.
Meanwhile, the investment from Chinese Government into the
scientific research of biologic and pharmaceutical technology will
stimulate greatly to the R&D service market. The upcoming new
booming age of the pharmaceutical industry will not only present
the Group with rare and precious business opportunities, but also
considerable return for the shareholders.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has not been any change to the capital structure of the

Company since that date.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Company invested its surplus fund through its principal bank
in investment market, which was RMB1,815,000.

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION MATERIAL

The Group’s remuneration policy is basically determined by the
performance of individual employees. In addition to salaries and
bonuses, employee benefits included medical and pension
contributions and share options schemes.

APPROPRIATION

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2012.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audit committee of the Board has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements for the year, including the accounting
principles and new and revised accounting standards adopted by
the Company, and discussed matters relating to auditing, internal
controls and financial reporting.

The audit committee confirmed the Company’s actions on
changing the PDS business strategy, reducing staff cost, rental and
other operation cost for more efficiently use of fund and suggested
the company to consider raising funds through bank loans,
issuance of new shares, convertible bonds, and issuance of new
debts and other methods etc when needed.

The audit committee considered providing the impairment losses
on relevant assets in 2012 was appropriate, comply with prudent
principle and reflected current market change, suggested the
company to enhance asset management and make more rapid
response to market on business strategy.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. William Xia GUO, is the Chairman, executive Director and
Joint Chief Technology Officer of the Group. Mr. Guo is
responsible for strategic planning and development, overall
management and R&D activities of the Group. Mr. Guo obtained
with a Master degree in science from University of Toronto in
March 1997. Mr. Guo has also completed various approved
courses for the degree of Master of Business Administration in the
Heriot-Watt University. Before establishing the Group in
December 1998, Mr. Guo had worked for two pharmaceutical
companies in Canada, namely Ortho-McNeil Inc. and Novopharm
Limited, both are pharmaceutical companies in Canada as research
scientist and process development manager, respectively. Mr. Guo
has approximately 10 years experience in research, pharmaceutical
development and management in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr.
Guo is a member of the American Association of Pharmaceutical
Scientists and the National Pharmaceutical Sciences Group Inc.

Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG, is an executive Director. Dr. Song is
responsible for Clinical Research (R&D) and also the head of the
Human Resources Management Department of the Group. Dr.
Song graduated from China Concord Medical University with a
Doctorate degree in clinical medicine in July 1995. She is also a
Registered Pharmacist in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group in
February 2000, Ms. Song had served as general manager of
Beijing Tiancifu Biopharmaceutical Co. Ltd.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FENG Tao, is nominated as a non-executive Director by C
Tech Fund. Mr. Feng obtained a Master degree in Science from the
Department of Statistics and Applied Probability from the
University of Alberta in June 1992. Mr. Feng has been serving as
the Vice President Officer of The Foundation of Science and
Technology for Development of the State Planning Committee,
State Economic and Trade Commission of the PRC and China
Science Academy since September 1999. He was appointed as
non-executive Director in August 2002.

Mr LI Jin Liang, Master of Business Administration (MBA) of
University of East London. Mr Li is a senior member of British
ACCA (The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants), and
is Certified Public Accountant (CPA) of China's Ministry of
Finance, Asian registered enterprise risk management division
master (CERM) of Asian risk and crisis management association,
and has twenty years experience of accounting and finance. He has
been Chief Financial Officer in Hopson Development Holdings
Limited, Rachel th dafeng group Co., LTD and The European food
import and export Co., LTD.

Dr. Nathan Xin ZHANG, is a non-executive Director. Dr. Zhang is
the former chief executive officer of Chipscreen Biosciences Ltd.,
a leading Chinese biotech company specialized in innovated
cancer, diabetes, and osteoporosis drug discovery. Dr. Zhang had
worked with KPMG LLP and Credit Suisse First Boston. Dr.
Zhang holds an M.D. from Tianjin Medical University, Ph. D from
University of Pennsylvania, and an MBA from the University of
Chicago, USA.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WU Shou Yuan, is an independent non-gxecutive Director and
is the chairman of the audit committee. Dr Wu is the
executive-director of Wisdom MC which is a subsidiary of China
accounting society, and is the director of ASIA CERAMICS
HOLDINGS PLC which is a listing company in British AIM, etc.
Dr Wu graduated from Ministry of Finance with a doctor’s degree,
from Capital University Of Economic And Business with a
master’s degree, and is a senior member of British ACCA, he is
one of the first batch of students of Ministry of Finance (Certified
Public Accounting Series), he has twenty years experience of
accounting and finance.

Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALQS, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was awarded an MBA from the Columbia University
in May 1985. Mr. Contomichalos had worked for Bristol-Myers
Squibb (BMS). His first position in China was to start up the
consumer over-the-counter business of Bristol-Myers Squibb in
1994, He became Chairman and President of Bristol-Myers
Squibb China from 1997 to 2000. Prior to working in China, Mr.
Contomichalos held various key consumer marketing and business
development positions with Bristol-Myers Squibb in the USA and
Canada and has aboutl8 years of experience in this field. He was
appointed as independent non-executive Director in August 2002,

Dr. ZHANG lJing An, is an independent non-executive Director,
with doctor’s degree of management and graduated from Beijing
Normal University in 1978, and he has extremely rich experience
of management and has deep research in policies and regulations.
Dr Zhang had been chairman of The torch high-tech industry
development center, and chairman of Small and mid-sized
enterprise innovation fund management center, president of
Technology Daily. Dr Zhang is a member of the national
committee of CPPCC, and is the president of CHINA
ASSOCIATION OF SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY
INDUSTRY PARKS, and is part-time professor or researcher in
Tsinghua University, Peking University,Renmin University of
China, Sun Yat-sen University and Shanghai Jiao Tong
University.
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HFEEHE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of the Company present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
notes 14 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
segments is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on

page 33 of the annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2012.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 12 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 22
to the financial statements.

RESERVE

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 116.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Managing Director:
William Xia GUO
Executive Directors:
Maria Xuemei SONG
Non-executive Directors:

FENG Tao
LI Jing Liang
Nathan Xin ZHANG

Independent Non-executive Directors:

‘WU Shou Yuan
Paul CONTOMICHALOS
ZHANG Jing An

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTEREST IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the
Company’s Directors and chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), which are required (a) to notify
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange™) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have taken under such provision of the SFO);
or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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#HH Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the  REATIRG ARG ZIFE
Company
P M AR A B AR A R AT S
1) The Company (1 A2 ]
§$ME : Number of
shares in which Number of
SRE interested shares in which
(other than interested under Total Approximate
ST Type of under equity physically settled number percentage of
Name interest Capacity derivatives) equity derivatives of shares interest
EEZEE £ovd TR B s H
KREH BEMBCRORA  RARTE TR i A
REF HiE 2z A by firtE TR ERIM) Hitaz B8 B 3 S B At
BYTHE: (Note 3
(FiEE 3)
{E%* William Xia GUO Personal Beneficial owner 9,110,377 9,708,000 18,818,377 5.14
$$% William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled 149,432,583 - 149,432,583 41.11
TRk Corporation (Note 1)
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled 15,966,073 - 15,966,073 4.39
ﬁ:‘l‘.ﬂﬁﬁ.ﬁi$ . Corporation (Note 2)

- 293 LN AN 9,110,377 9,708,000 18,818,377 5.14
RAFTC 297} | sl EE (B 149,432,583 — 149,432,583 41.11
Paul CONTOMICHALOS $E o] SeElk iR (P 2) 15,966,073 - 15,966,073 4.39
L

HREREETBARR A HHRB B s ias

RE-F-THEFZAEH, AARZEREREETHRA
ARAA G REHEBEE (ERAES RIREES (15
F BRG] ) BXVIE) ZMbr. ARG T,
A () FREE S5 LN BB X VIR 7 RS A&
AATRERBOZHIIARAT ( TR ) 2
R (CRLHAL S AR R I I S0 0 91 B 5 10k SO B AR
BRIk ) ; BRI 22 B IR BB
352f6k, AP ABMEITIRE M R RIRE; ()R
RIZER L TTHIR 55 46 B s 67 R BT 2 MR R 0 F

Note 1: The controlled corporation, Venturepharm Holdings
Inc., is 47.63 % directly held by Mr. William Xia
GUO and 49.00 % held by Mr. William Xia GUO
through Winsland Agents Limited, his wholly and
beneficially owned company incorporated in British
Virgin Islands.

Note 2: The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets
Limited, is 100 % beneficially owned by
Venturepharm Holdings Inc.

Note 3: Various interests of the Directors and chief executives
pursuant to physically settled equity derivatives are
through share options granted under the Pre-IPO share
option scheme.Details of which are set forth as
follows:

Ffate: SFHEHEE Venturepharm Holdings Inc. Hi #5256
EEERF47.63% M, LI 1 PEE 5642
Winsland Agents Limited (T 8718 2 FF 55T
War, MEEEREE R HEE) F549.00%/K
.

Bifitz: 2% B Bright Excel Assets Limited 4 SF /K Hi
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. Y-t

Fiats: #EHFREEFTHARR TR BRANE LA
I F 2 2 TR HE 7t 7538 AR I8 B A2 P B IR T A
SRR E R R (T - eI BAY LT
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Number of shares in

which interested under physically

settled equity derivatives as at
Name 20 June 2003 and 31 December 2011 Date of grant Exercise price

PEEBR=AEANA T THR

—E——4+"H=1—H

RIS E AR AN E LR
4 FeA B R B E £ B i Rt dist
William Xia GUO 7,200,000 20-Jun-03 HK$0.32
William Xia GUO 360,000 2-Mar-05 HK$0.52
William Xia GUO 324,000 10-Aug-06 HK$0.36
William Xia GUO 966,000 10-May-07 HK$0.625
William Xia GUO 858,000 7-Apr-09 HK$0.435
Lig -] 7,200,000 ZEEZFAAH=TH 0.32370
WH 360,000 ZEZHE=ZAZH 0.52770
HWE 324,000 ZEEZEANENHTH 0.36¥57T
WHE 966,000 ZERRHERATH 0.625H5 7T
FHE 858,000 ZRBJENHEH 0.4353 7T

Options granted to Mr. William Xia GUO contain a vesting schedule,
pursuant to which may exercise up to 30 % of the underlying shares
after 31 December 2003, up to another 30 % of the underlying shares
after 31 December 2004 and the balance after 31 December 2005. The
relevant options will expire after ten years from the date of grant. Mr.
William Xia GUO has undertaken to the Stock Exchange that he will
not exercise their options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options
Scheme within the first 12 months from the Listing Date
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2) A subsidiary of the Company - Beijing Dezhong-Venture
Pharmaceutical Technology Development Company
Limited

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
Directors and chief executive had any interests or short positions
in any securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
are required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provision of the SFO); or (b) pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (¢) pursuant to the rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as it is known to any Directors, chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2012, the interests and short
positions of persons in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed pursuant to Division
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required, pursuant
to section 336 of Part X'V of the SFO, to be entered in the register

referred to therein were as follows:
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Approximate
percentage of
Name Capacity Number of shares interest
5 FR 5 fy & ¥ E = 8 4E o
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Note 1) Beneficial owner 149, 432, 583 41.10
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 15, 966, 073 4.38
Bright Excel Assets Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 15, 966, 073 4.38
William Xia GUO Beneficial owner and interest 184, 217, 033 50.57
(Notes 1, 2and 3) of controlled corporations
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (fff 5L 1) HBamEAa A 149, 432, 583 41.10
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (P 5F 2) e | R 15, 966, 073 438
Bright Excel Assets Limited (fff & 2) HuEA A 15, 966, 073 438
¥ OE (fEL 2ED HAEEA AR ZIEH % EER 184, 217, 033 50.57
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company REAT R BB R 2 e
Note 1: Venturepharm Holdings Inc. is 47.63% directly held Watl: Venturepharm Holdings Inc I 1252 64 ELH#1F
by Mr. William Xia GUO and 49% held by Mr. 747,639/, LA HFFEZSGAETEM  Winsland
William Xia GUO through Winsland Agent Limited, Agent Limited (T HBELRF STy, HEF
his  wholly and beneficially owned company B P EERAER) f49% B0
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
Note 2:  The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets Limited, Bfat2: AZFEER Bright Excel Assets Limited B
is 100 % beneficially owned by Venturepharm Venturepharm Holdings Inc. Bz P47 -
Holdings Inc.
Note 3:  Apart from shares held through Venturepharm Holdings Ht3:  BREE# Venturepharm Holdings Inc. #5261,

Inc., the interest of 18,818,377 shares comprising of
7,200,000 and 2,508,000 shares underlying the
options granted to him under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme
respectively are beneficially owned by Mr. William
Xia GUO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, there was no
other persons who was recorded in the register of the Company
as having interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which were required, pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No other contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

1. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholder
on 31 March 2003, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) in order
to recognize and reward the contribution of certain Directors,
senior management and advisers, the details of which
are set out in the paragraph head “Share Option Scheme”
in Appendix IV to the Prospectus. As at 20 June 2003,
options comprising a total of 11,520,000 underlying
shares were granted. As at 31 December 2012 the options
outstanding are 11,520,000 and no options granted pursuant
to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme had been exercised,
cancelled or lapsed. Particulars of the outstanding
options that had been granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Schemes at 31 December 2012 are as follows:
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ANTIRBRER -EE=F =" =+ -Hi#iks
B R R IR AN BT [ IRA BB R
JEHERTE] O, UEERFIELTEY. ofERE
B R EURR, PR T SR AR SR AL
S —B. RoEZE=FANA21TH, AAF
T2 R A3E11, 520, 0005 B RS fr 2 B A
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2 B A REME AT . FReN et R T
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Period during Number of
which the options Exercise underlying shares
remain exercisable price per under the option as at
Name of grantees after the date of grant share 31.12.2012
MR At H o R
S IN TS AT AR AT TR 2 2 AH R R A 8
William Xia GUQO (Notes 1 & 2) 10 years HK$0. 32 7,200,000
2 other participants (Notes 1 & 2) 10 years HK$0. 32 2,520,000
1 other participant (Note 3) 10 years HK$0. 40 1,800,000
11,520,000
R (PRELA2) T4 0. 3247T 7,200,000
Wi A2 (PR LR2) 4 0. 32475 2,520,000
—HAh S (3D T4 0. 40457 1,800,000
11,520,000
Note 1: Options granted to each of them contain a vesting HilaL]: PR 2 R R B i (], R,
schedule, pursuant to which may exercise up to 30% AR RE A = — AR E R
of the underlying shares after 31 December 2003, B 300 CIEIRIE (FERRL2ZHRT) , =
(subject to Note 2), up to another 30 % of the LFpgFf A = H BT Z R
underlying shares after 31 December 2004 and the HER30% BB, RR - FEENFfH=A
balance after 31 December 2006. —HEATIERR T2
Note 2: Each of the grantees has undertaken to the Stock Wfat2: HABNCIBERR, FLi HAEqE 12
Exchange that they will not exercise their options A A, A T E AR B2 B R i i
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme IR I IR
within the first 12 months from the Listing Date.
Hiat3: BTSRRI B A B g I, 1, %
Note 3: Options granted to an adviser contain a vesting AR = ERE AT H = — BT

schedule, pursuant to which may exercise up to 30 %
of the underlying shares after 31 December 2002, up
to another 30 % of the underlying shares afier 31
December 2003 and the balance after 31 December
2004. Each of the grantees has undertaken to the Stock
Exchange that they will not exercise their options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme
within the first 6 months from the Listing Dale.

B 30% 2 SR, B EE=FfH =+
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FERTE MR, A G TR K2 B
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted
anew share option scheme.

As at 2 March 2005, options comprising a total of
4,042,000 underlying shares were granted. As at
31December 2012, the options outstanding are 880,400
and 3,161,600 options granted pursuant to this Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed.
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Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted

a new share option scheme.

As at 10 August 2006, options comprising a total of
4,118,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2012, the options outstanding are 1,330,200
and 2,787,800 options granted pursuant to this Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed.
Particulars of the outstanding options which have been
granted under this Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2012 are as follows:

Period during Number of

which the options Exercise underlying shares

remain exercisable price per under the option as at

Name of grantees after the date of grant share 31.12.2013
SRR H % —F—=4+"_HA=1+—H

RN A TATEIFR FRATRE SR R AR B B
1 participants 10 years HK$0. 45 72,000
72,000

14 2B +4F 0. 453 7T 72,000
72,000

SHARE OPTION SCHEME i i

BEANGRER - FZ=0H1F +=HzEm
NFER, AN T REN TR T

BoEENENATH, CREB A, 118,000
B G WERE. P2 —F+-A=1+—
H, 1,330,200 ¥ HSMcHE v ARATHE, BG2,787,800
PR s M R B 2t 2 M R g R S R AR
BR-F-ZFTZHA=Z1—H, AR
R Z M RAT RS T

Particulars of the outstanding options which have been EREZ MAAT AR ST
granted under this Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2012 are as follows:
Period during Number of
which the options Exercise underlying shares
remain exercisable price per under the option as at
Name of grantees after the date of grant share 31.12.2012
SERERERR th H 7 ZFE A=A
SN A PATER R TS it g RO ol e e E
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0. 52 360,000
Other Directors 10 years HK$0. 52 374,400
Other participants 10 years HK$0. 52 146,000
880,400
HE +4F 0. 52#75 360,000
Hih#ES |4 0. 52#75 374,400
HAhZ2 8 +4F 0. 52T 146,000
880,400
3. SHARE OPTION SCHEME ST

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted

a new share option scheme.

As at 14 December 2005, options comprising a total of
1,098,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2012, the options outstanding are 72,000 and
1,026,900 options granted pursuant to this Share Option
Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed. Particulars of the
outstanding options which have been granted under this
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2012 are as

follows:
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RBAAFARFR _FZ=ZFHA T =HEMm
RERSE, A0 R IR — TR AT B

ATERLSEHTAHIH, SR A, 098,000
AU A Z PR . R —F——F A=t
H. &72, 00043 H B i ARAT(E, KA1, 026, 900
rr ARCARR P P HE R 452 L 2 SR M R SRR 2
REF-CET A=A, AR
BN MAITEMBAER T

Period during Number of

which the options Exercise underlying shares

remain exercisable price per under the option as at

Name of grantees after the date of grant share 31.12.2012
S B AR Y E IR —R-CHFF+ZA=+—H

S N A PATERH R BT SR 7 R A R ey B
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0. 36 324,000.00
Other directors 10 years HK$0. 36 576,000.00
Other participants 10 years HK$0. 36 430,200.00
1,330,200.00

WE +4F 0. 363 7T 324,000.00
Hib#s +4E 0. 363 7T 576,000.00
Hip 25 T4 0. 363 T 430,200.00
1,330,200.00
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5. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the sharcholders
of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted
anew share option scheme.

As at 10 May 2007, options comprising a total of
7,568,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2012, the options outstanding are 2,862,900
and 4,705,100 options granted pursuant to this Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed.
Particulars of the outstanding options which have been
granted under this Share Option Scheme as at 31

December 2012 are as follows:

HHGHA
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SRR

REARRRFA_FFZFHA +=H2&E
PR, AN E R THRTE R .

R-FFLFERH+TH, Sl

7,568, 000 AHB Rt A, A =% — o+

—H=+—H, #2,862,900 ERE N RTE,

FA 4,705, 100G HRBEME R HERT B H 2 B E T
WEksgo R, B —F——%}=-H=1+—H, &
AR R | B e o M RAT A R AR R O T -
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6. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 25 March 2009, the Company

adopted a new share option scheme.

As at 7 April 2009, options comprising a total of
11,966,800 underlying shares were granted. As at
31December 2012 the options outstanding are
6,926,800 and 5,040,000 options granted pursuant to
this Share Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed.
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6. S

WBAXFRBRHR —FFNF=A HHZ &M@
PR, ARAFRA—BH AR .

REFFNENA-EH, BB AL, 966, 800
JECAH B Bty 2 S LR . A =T — A A=
H. 46,926, 8004 B HE M ARAT A, HRIRHEEHE
AT R 2 B RHES, 040, 0004 CLpRTSH R J 3
BT ZFEH A=, AR

Period during Number of

which the options Exercise underlying shares

remain exercisable price per under the option as at

Name of grantees after the date of grant share 31.12.2012
R M 12 H E R —&F&—-—fFt+-RF=1+—H

FEAZ NI A PATEHIR T fRA T S FRRE 2 R = A P43 4 H
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0. 625 966,000.00
Other Directors 10 years HK$0. 625 732,000.00
Other participants 10 years HK$0. 625 1,164,900.00
2,862,900.00

HE T4 0. 625475 966,000.00
Fofthw g T4 0. 6254570 732,000.00
o253 +4F 0. 625375 1,164,900.00
2,862,900.00
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Particulars of the outstanding options which have been B M ARATAE R R T
granted under this Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2012 are as follows:
Period during Number of
which the options Exercise underlying shares
remain exercisable price per under the option as at
Name of grantees after the date of grant share 31.12.2013
SEfscrE e 12 H AR R -=F+ZA=1—H
RENEE A FAT AR FBATRE TR B 2 AR SR
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0. 435 858,000.00
Other directors 10 years HK$0. 435 1,135,200.00
Other participants 10 years HK$0. 435 4,933,600.00
6,926,800.00
WHE T4 0. 435# 70 858,000.00
HAh# g T4 0. 43570 1,135,200.00
Hihzm +4F 0. 435470 4,933,600.00
6,926,800.00
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS B B 5

Details of the discloseable connected transactions during the year
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business

of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entere into or
subsisted during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors or the
management shareholders of the Company and their respective
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest
in a business that competes or may compete with the business of
the Group.

SEN T TR L BRI 5 T R it 5 S B R P 29

EFEAY

S P A B R A A R R A A R AT A R ] 4
WECKH R 2 EEAH.

3550 R 2

BoF-CHFET A=+ 0, ARRZERREEER
RS ® A N CER R AR BT A B
TR AT S AR 5 (8] 3 5 198 R B PT RE AR Bl 2 O S B h e A
o
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BOARD PRACTICE AND PROCEDURES

Since the listing of the Company, the Company has complied
with Board Practices and Procedures as set out in Rules5.46 to
5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DELAY IN RESULT ANNOUNCEMENT

As the Group needed more time to complete the auditing work,
which specifically includes the following: accounting treatment
of Convertible Bonds, going concern assessment, impairment
of receivables, and impairment of inventories, the publication of
the Result Announcement of the company and its subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2012 was delayed.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation for independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have confirmed that they are independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 49.9% of the Group’s sales. The largest customer
accounted for approximately 18.5% of the sales of the Group.

Aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 10% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders
which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital had any interest in the five
largest customers of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

AUDITORS

UHY VOCATION HK CPA LIMITED was appointed as the
auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chairman
William Xia GUO

Beijing, the PRC, 29 May 2013
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@

(2)

3

Note:

(@)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company applied the principles and fully complied with
the Code Provision as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules ("CG Code") save with certain deviations in
respect of the roles of chairman and chief executive officer.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Company Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
incompliance with the provisions that are set out in the
GEM Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for
Directors' dealings of securities since 29 June 2005.
Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors
and the Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Company Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall governance structure of the Company is set out below:
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o eEERHS

Ao w A SRR _E TR 8515 T I B 4 T
SPEFATECTRIERSC O TREBERESATAL ), '
R BRI

2  EHEZERRR

A E SRR AR BTSRRI TR RS, SRALET
BT NEFETEFZH AR TR, EAAAT
M_FFHEANA I HEEFHEEFRT
#H|. REeRERELRRARR, IR, K
EARE_F - F+ A=+ HILFEEASF,
— B Sy B 57 RO 2 R

3 EHHE

The Board
HEE
Chairman appointed by the board
H AR TN
2 Executive Directors
2fr TR
3 Non-Executive Directors
AR T
3 Independent Non-Executive Directors
SR AR T S
Executive Directors Audit Committdd
BiTEDR wEEAS
. . 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors
William Xia GUO S AT
gﬁgj . Wu Shou Yuan(Chairman)
Maria Xuemei SONG BT (R
REH Paul CONTOMICHALOS
Zhang Jing An
TR
Wit
The Non-Executive Directors of the Company during (a) ERN BRI A, K2 a7 I T #
the year and up to the date of this report are: Hi:
FENG Tao Vi

WU Xin (resigned on 24 May 2012)
LI Jin Liang (appointed on 24 May 2012)
Nathan Xin ZHANG

The Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

WU Shou Yuan
Paul CONTOMICHALOS
ZHANG Jing An

Bk (F201245 5 24 HFHE)
FELE (20129524 HEE)
I

BL TR IHATHF:

RFTT
Paul CONTOMICHALOS
T
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The Board of Directors ("Board") of the Company is collectively
responsible for the oversight of the management of the business
and affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing
shareholders value.

The Board of the Company comprises a total of eight Directors,
with two Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors. One-third of the
Board is Independent Non-executive Directors and one of them
has appropriate professional qualifications. Reviews are made
regularly of the Board composition to ensure that it has a balance
of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. All Independent
Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in GEM Rule 5.09 of the Listing Rules and are independent in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval
and monitoring of the Group's overall strategies and policies;
approval of annual budgets and business plans; evaluating the
performance of the Group; and oversight of management. One of
the important roles of the Chairman is to provide leadership to the
Board to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Group. All Directors have been consulted about any matters
proposed for inclusion in the agenda. With the support of
Executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman
seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receives adequate and reliable
information in a timely manner.

Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in advance to
give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Four regular Board
meetings at approximately quarterly intervals have been
scheduled for 2012. The Directors can attend meetings in persons
or through other means of electronic communication in
accordance with the Company's Articles of Association. Board
papers are circulated not less than seven days before the Board
meetings to enable the Directors to make informed decisions on
matters to be raised at the Board meetings. The Company
Secretary and the Qualified Accountant shall attend all regular
Board meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory
compliance, accounting and financial matters when necessary.
Directors shall have full access to information of the Group and
are able to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman in establishing the meeting agenda, and each
Director may request inclusion of items in the agenda. Minutes of
the board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
open for inspection by Directors.

26 | VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED

IEE TR
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ApFERG ([H5G) ) ARG HEERREEER R
BHZEH, ETBOREERE .

ANTFHFG B AL\ S ERAR, HP a8 T,
ZARARITER R A RE R TER. a2 &
HERAREIFBTES, B SR AREEER.
EREGEMRELAM, DIRERREE 2 N, S
KA, LEaGAAFERRE. 2B
PUTEHHFFS AR LTRSS ook Frili i 2465, B
HIRA BRSSO S

WEGh TR, A TTER R A R SR R
R, MEFERA R, FAREEE, MEE
BHE. TRET-HAEERESFERSE, UHERE
HGLIAREERAEF G TR 0 g E R R
GEALREREN. BERTESRALATMELLR,
FERHAHR B ERRFEZLANGRERGTRED
Z I, AREUR SR AT SRR

ANTEREFEPETEERTLMIFME, UES
BEROREHE. T34, YRR EHcHEs
TR EME S G EHE REAATZAFHMBERE,
HEA S HOERE T AL ER. SR
PEEEERE TR -CRATER, LA e
HFEQ ORI HFREHAERE. ATBELEER
ETEIEN A SN ER G ER, WRTERRARE
B BERS SR RMHTHERMAER. & E T ER
AEETAER, WRETHEFELHTENIUSELHEER
o AFRAETE) R M H R, WAERTERT
HEMAER. FHESFHCRNAFRELE, LAt
EHAER.

PR ETAH
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2012, the
Board met and held four meetings. The attendance
records of the aforementioned four Board meetings are
set out below:
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gE_F-_Ft+A=t+—Hit+=ZEH, TEE
AT CE . IRVIRES S Eag R ek
BN

Attendance of individual directors at
board meetings during the year

RN R G &

Attendance no. Attendance rate

1 R i
Executive Director HiTES
William Xia GUO e 4/4 100%
Maria Xuemei SONG REHF 4/4 100%
Non-executive Directors FHATES
FENG Tao 1T 4/4 100%
WU Xin (resigned on 24 May 2012) i O 2012 525 H 24 HEHE) 2/4 50%
LI Jin Liang (appointed on 24 May 2012) 4T (A 20124E5 H 24 HBD 2/4 50%
Nathan Xin ZHANG SRk 4/4 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors B dETESE
WU Shou Yuan mET 4/4 100%
Paul CONTOMICHALOS Paul CONTOMICHALOS 4/4 100%
ZHANG Jing An B 4/4 100%
@) CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  (4) FREATBHE

Chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership
and effective running of the Board, and ensures that all
keys and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board
in a timely and constructive manner.

However, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
has not yet been appointed. Currently, the day-to-day
management of the Company's business is handled by
the executive directors and senior management, who
take the responsibility to run the Group's business and to
implement the Group's strategy so as to achieve the
overall commercial objectives of the Company.

EHEEE ATRREEE T LI YO, DR
REES L HRERME AR T EEREES
H.

IR, AATF MARBAEMATBA . Bk, A2
) 3R B T E S AR BT,
135 AU A B ACER B 3 S AT AR B SR, LA
S E AL - TR SR
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises the
Chairman of the Board Mr. William Xia GUO, a Non-executive
Director Mr. FENG Tao and an Independent
Non-executive Director Mr, Paul CONTOMICHALOS. Mr.
William Xia GUO is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations to the
Board on the Company's policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management and
reviewing the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Company's Articles of
Association, nomination of Directors is determined by
the Board with approvals by the shareholders in the
general meeting.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The coming annual general meeting should approve the
appointment of UHY Vocation HK CPA Limited as the
auditors of the Group and that the Board is and be
hereby authorized to fix auditors’ remuneration.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
the Company's annual reports and accounts, half-yearly
reports and quarterly reports and internal control system
of the Group and provide advice and comments to the Board.
The audit committee has three members comprising the
three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. WU
Shou Yuan, Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALOS and Mr.
ZHANG Jing An . Mr. WU Shou Yuan is the chairman
of the audit committee.
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During the twelve months ended 31 December 2012, the
audit committee held three meetings and reviewed the
Group's annual report, quarterly and interim financial
results. The attendance records of the aforementioned
three audit committee meetings are set out below:
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BE-T-—F+A=t—HIEFZAA, BES
BEWRT=&E, WORMASE 2 FEHRE.
BRI ES. PR EREESR g
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Attendance of individual directors at
board meetings during the year
FEANHFEEZEFLUOHFEE

Attendance no. Attendance rate

H R REL R

Members 4=
WU Shou Yuan LT 313 100%
Paul CONTOMICHALOS Paul CONTOMICHALOS 3/3 100%
ZHANG Jing An TR 3/3 100%
9 DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THEIR  (9) EETHRGSERMBREZRE

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that they take full responsibility WA TR, PSR .

in the preparation of the financial statements.
(10)  INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT (10) POER B8 & R B B

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group has a
sound and effective internal control system. The Group is
committed to the identification, monitoring and management
of risks associated with its business activities and has
implemented a practical and effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
a sound cash management system and periodic review of
the Group’s operation and performance by the Audit
Committee and the Board. The internal control system is
reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Board to ensure it is
effective. The Board is satisfied that, based on information
furnished to it and on its own observations, the present
internal controls of the Group are satisfactory. The Board
has conducted review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control and is of the view that the system of internal
control adopted for the year ended 31 December 2012 is
sound and effective. The Group does not have an internal
audit function and the Board is of the view that there is
currently no need for the Group to have this function.
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T AT AT IE SO G A7 5 K E 3
3/E., Malaysia Building, 50 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED

AL B
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

B R AT
€
(i B = A S e oz 2 A PR A R])

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Venturepharm Laboratories Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 33 to 115
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine are necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.
Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the content of this report.
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Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Emphasis of matter in relation to the going concern basis for
preparation of consolidated financial statements

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2.1 to

RPHER - R R

FEARLREERZENT, ARBESE BN ESRES

Year ended 31 December
BE+_HA=1+—HILFE

2012 2011
the consolidated financial statements which indicates that the — FAR$#fisklfiatz 1, BHEMREZE T "+ "H=1+— i Iy Y "
Group had consolidated net current liabilities of approximately HIFA & & mE s a A e A2 545 A K¥#1,928,000 Note RMB’000 RMB’000
RMB11,928,000 and net liabilities of approximately  JGM#IA BH94,187,0007C. MR & M HH R SR Bk AT IE NERMTIE
RMB94,187,000 as at 31 December 2012. The consolidated e HESESER R R EERE S, AN
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern  FE&FAH NFHRA B E TR, FIAEMEF) IR
basis, the validity of which is dependent on upon the future — EJLGEEARNEER M BT R IWEHES MHREILAR Revenue B\ 5 78,688 18.099
funding available, the intention of the Convertible Bonds holders  fu3f AT A s Lh B s I At s T A 2 Cost of sales B A (16,236) (11 [)94)
to convert the bonds into Company shares and the attainment of ,
profitable and positive cash flow operations of the Group to meet Gross profit 1) 12.452 7.005
its future working capital and financial requirements. The Other income Hoflr A 6 3‘7 11 1,477
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments Administrative expenses ;é;ﬂ% | 38 a7 :148) (51 ;] 4)
that may be necessary should there be no future funding available Impairment loss on work=in-progress R R 16 (6,653) (57! 423)
and the implementation of proposed measures (o improve the Gain/(loss) on revaluation of convertible bonds ] $fi f 25 T At BRI/ 4E) 25 16,283 (4,546)
Group’s financial and cash flow position be unsuccessful. Gain/(loss) on disposal of financial assets at EEREEFRIIR ) 20

. fair value through profit or loss, net 37 (47,169)
Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments R 4 AR EL N T , BEMNEESE UARREGESE Finance (costs)/income — net Hﬁ%(ﬁ FEW R 7 (5,151) 7.198
may have to be made to reflect the situation that assets may need — EE8 {3 Ltk S ES M FHVE B ERH . LAb, ,
to be realised at other than the amounts at which they are 72 [ B ol 75 2 3 7 v fE tH B AY £ 0T VB e, DA T3 Profit/(loss) before income tax BRI ) 3,231 (149,772)
currently recorded in the consolidated statement of financial — SMEIEREE L REEE. Income tax B 10 (113) (4,024)
position. In addition, the Group may have to provide for further -
liabilities that might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets as Total comprehensive income for the year AAE 4T B At 3.118 (153,796)
current assets.

N Attributable to: JE:
UHY VOCATION HK CPA LIMITED KB G MBHTARAE Owners of the Company AT N 3207 (152,435)
Certified Public Accountants BT Non-controlling interests e (89) (1,361)
Pang Hon Chung, Auditor SRR B, 3118 (153,796)
Practising Certificate Number P01431 e EHRHTP01431
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share FA R AR BRI 11 0.881li(cents) (41.85)lli (cents)

Hong Kong, 29 May 2013
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BoF - A=+—H

As at 31 December 2012

As at 31 December As at 31 December
Bt+A=1+—H w+—H=+—H
2012 2011 2012 2011

- _B——f

g R4

Note RMB’000 RMB’000 Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ffel  ARW¥Tx AE®ETT e ARWTRE AR®TT
ASSETS ErE ASSETS B
Non-current assets IF ) Non-current assets e E) g
Property, plant and equipment Yok W5 sttt 12 9,616 11,523 Investments in subsidiaries RETE A RS 14 12,813 12,813
New drugs technology HEER AT 13 - -
Deferred tax assets IRFEFTIE S e 15 - - Current assets g RE
9,616 11,523 Prepayments and other receivables FEAHEE A A R 19 4,040 1,813
Current assets TEERE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss e A EE R ROIR - Rl 20 1,815 1,803
Work-in-progress TEEE i 16 17,611 11,711 Cash and cash equivalents B NBEEEY) 21 99 721
Trade and note receivables HENC IR 18 3,535 1,436 5,954 4,337
Prepayments and other receivables TAfHIERO RO T 19 6,123 4,673 Total assets qgE 18,767 17,150
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss A REEFGEGTIR SMEE 26 1,815 1,803
Cash and cash equivalents B4 IR 45T 21 2,771 6,822 EQUITY FAgERs
31,855 26,445 Ordinary shares JieAs 22 38,536 38,536
Total assets Mg 41,471 37,968 Reserves et 23 (135,487) (147,905)
EQUITY FRARE AR
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company A2 FIHEA AE(GHERS Capital deficiency BEfhE s Aat (96,951) (109,369)
Ordinary shares JiZN 22 38,536 38,536
Reserves it 23 (132,880)  (134,972) LIABILITIES £ 1
(94,344) (96,436) Non-current liabilities ElS =t
Non-controlling interests JEEERE 157 (316) Convertible bonds Bk 25 91,875 -
Capital deficiency B AR (94,187) (96,752)
Current liabilities MEE
LIABILITIES Al Other payables and accruals HARREA A 24 5,400 1,954
Non-current liabilitics Bl =i Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAS—F-2A T 24 18,443 17,779
Convertible bonds QE i 25 91,875 - Convertible bonds Al 25 - 106,786
Current liabilities mEaE 23,843 126,519
Other payables and accruals HAbRR TR A 24 17,264 12,707 Total liabilities AftasE 115,718 126,519
Convertible bonds AlRIES 25 - 106,786 Total equity and liabilities R L et aris 18,767 17,150
Receipts in advance TR 23,475 15,146 Net current liabilities mE AR EEHE (17,889) (122,182
Bank borrowing FRATHEER 26 3,000 - Total assets less current liabilities S EREE A (5,076) (109,369)
Income tax liabilities FEATE 44 81
Total liabilities BfEaHE 135,658 134,720
Total equity and liabilities JeR R N A A 41,471 37,968 Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 May 2013:
Net current liabilities s E e (11,928)  (108,275) HREG O E— s H 20 HHHESATRERIEE i 3 s AR R
Total assets less current liabilities M PR (2,312) (96,752)
Mr. William Xia GUO Dr. Maria Xuemei SONG
WESE REM L
Director Director
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 May 2013: A #ay

EHOOHN —F—=Fs H 20 DM RATHET R b T 7 #E SRR R

- . The notes on pages 38 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Mr. William Xia GUO

Dr. Maria Xuemei SONG BT 3858 11 SEL R 2 A5 R A

R AL REMHEA
Director Director
B HF

The notes on pages 38 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BEZ -+ _A=t—HIMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Attributable to owners of the Company As at 31 December
RATRA M BE+_A=1—HILFE
Share- Statutory Retained 2012 2011
bused enlerprise  earnings/ Nor- T 4
Share payment Special Capital  Statutory  expansion  (accumulated controlling Total Note RMB’000 RMB’000
capital reserve Teserve Teserve reserve fund Toss) Total interests equity [?ﬁ‘%‘_{ MNEWT 5 ANE i@—T— IC
WA A EERE  HERH e
Bk zMeRE  RNNE RS REAE BRES  (RiED Bt hEWEE  EEAH Cash flows from operating activities RegTEE 2 B
RME'OQD  RMB'OOC  RMBOOD ~ RMB'OOD ~ RMBOO0 ~ RMB'O0  RMEOO  RMB'OW  RMB'O00  RMB'OO0 Cash (nsed in)/ generated from operations MEEE A B4 27 (2,790) 11,656
AR%TE  AREFZ ARETx AR%Tx AR¥Tx AR®Tx AR®TZ  ARMTL  AR¥TZ  AR¥TL Interest expenses Fll B (3,677) (4,940)
S Income tax paid FrASHISH (150) -
At Jaruary 2011 —A—H 3,469 3627 £0%9 1459 3805 69% (5,109) 55,280 1,045 56,325
Net cash (used in)/ generated from BEEE(ER)/ (6,617) 6,716
Tota comprehensive RFEATME - - - - - - (152435) (152435 (1361) (153.7%) operating activities L ATV
income for the year
Cash flows from investing activities G Bl S
Tunsctionswithonners — HIAENTER Purchase of property, plant and equipment FEEMISE. R Rt 12 (809) (612)
Isseofordinary sharesupon  FFREARHRATERRY) & - - s - - - # - 0 Dividends received A 42 106
et ofshae opors Payments for the acquisition of financial assets B e A B AR A - (57,577)
Brecieclducoptons g 3 [Si] i} # ' ) ) N - - at fair value through profit or loss Rl Sk
Employesshare opion benefts _ fABARHAF! ' Sl . . - - . el . i Proceeds from disposal of property, e NN 59 54
‘ . plant and equipment A
Total transactions with owners A [ 29 - 359 - - - 9 - 9 . . . — s
o RiRHR N ! ’ : " " Proceeds from disposal of financial assets H A SR 252 50,585
At31 December 2011 Bog—Ftf 5% 3920 6039 1818 3805 6,986 (1575%8)  (3643%) (316) (36.752) at fair value through profit or loss ACHRZ S AE W
e oy 200 R Interest received WCHF 2. 22 298
e ] }
Net cash used in investing activities AT ED A B (434) (7,146)
Total comprehensive - - - 3207 3,207 (89) 3118
incomse for the year Cash flows from financing activities = ST e A
Proceeds from short-term loan S RS S 3000 -
Transactons with ownets Proceeds from issuance of new shares BT RS Es - 342
Employee share option benefits i ERETREIEF - 365 - - - - - 365 . 365
Trenderred to statstoryreserve EHEEZAR - : - - 1 - (18) - - Net cash generated from financing activities FaEEEE e 3,000 342
Purchase of adcitional B ARSI - - - - - - {1,480) (1.480) 362 (918)
ikeest i subsiciry Net decrease in cash and B4 N 4 S > (4,051) (88)
Toltursictonswibowrers  BFAENRAT - 5 - - 18 - 089 2 (553 cash equivalents
At31 December 2012 RAog——ipt—R 38,53 4285 503¢ 1,818 3821 6986 (155,829) (94,344) 157 (94,187) Cash and cash equivalents at the Bl BB &S IRRAE 21 6,822 6,910
= beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end B e e L RS Y ] 21 2,771 6,822

The notes on pages 38 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. of the year

BER 3822 115 B Ml s B o i S A e oA

The notes on pages 38 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

GENERAL INFORMATION —AREE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTBREE &)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Venturepharm Laboratories Limited (the “Company”) is a EERHEEARAR ( [RAH] ) B—HR_-%2%
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21 May THERAS T HIRBHERSARRE (ZEFF 2.1 Basis of preparation 2.1 S e
2002 as an exempted company with limited liability under &5 {EB SR EEH O AR e A TR EEAT],
the Companies Law (2002 Revision) of the Cayman HEbME e bl %Scotia Centre, 4th Floor, PO Box The consolidated financial statements of the Group have FEE G A FRR SR G ([
Islands. The address of its registered office is Scotia Centre, 2804, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial W BIREEA ] ), HeiMaERaEFgaas
4th Floor, PO Box 2804, George Town, Grand Cayman, T e o B S A B 2 bt T W I R = IR L 1 15 Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term a2 AT (B M AR R s EEt
Cayman Islands, and its principal place of business is EREEEC, B4 100089, . HARTE - TE—AE includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial MR RerefR ) Sl AR O MBSRRIMERE R A FR
Haitong Commercial Center,No.11,North West 3rd Ring EH+HREHBEA S ITA WA ( [H32H) ) L Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards 15 B A s 58 5 T PR W) A1) AR 78 27 i A
Road, Haidian District, Beijing, ,China, 100089.The . and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of ( [0 EATRR ) Z iR HE.
Company has its shares listed on the Growth Enterprise Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated
Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the financial statements also include the applicable disclosure
“Stock Exchange™) since 10 July 2003, requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
The Company is an investment holding company. The AT T EEER ARG, HWE AR T Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to e RS A S MBIRR M 14. Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules™).
the consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared AFE IR R AR, W ESE
These consolidated financial statements are presented in A TRRAE LA A R ThEs B s A R T oamisd. under the historical cost convention as modified by Pl 7 e T 7 AR e e AR B T B A
Renminbi (“RMB”) unless otherwise stated. financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and B EGTEREST.
convertible bonds that are stated at fair value.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved BE F-FEt A= —HIMEREZ &5 %R
for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 May 2013. FOR =T H -+ HEEH ST, The preparation of consolidated financial statements in SR S E I B RN Bk W BT
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical Bk et fhat. SRR A 7 A AL E et
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING EE O accounting. estimates. It also- requires management to IASORAR AT G BRI oies B2 ML
POLICIES exercise its judgement in the process of applying the PERENS, SR SRS A B ERAE th B R A
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher SHROTORE, FEPRRE 4 thakER.
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation 2 £ B A T R B RS F degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. BRAARRIHAEA, SRR BRUERA AT 2HRER. assuml-mons and . estimates  are .31gn.1ﬂcm-1t to the
.. . . consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. 211 Going concern 211 REE

38 | VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED

The Group generated profit attributable to owners of
approximately RMB3,207,000 for the year ended 31
December 2012 (2011: Loss of approximately
RMB152,435,000) and as of that date, the Group had net
current liabilities of approximately RMB 11,928,000 (2011:
RMB108,275,000) and capital deficiency of approximately
RMB94,187,000 (2011: RMB96,752,000).

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the Company
have given consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources of
finance in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient

financial resources to continue as a going concern.

HE-F—F+-A=1T—HILFE, £A8EHK
WEATR  [AEE] ) ZAAFHE NESAER
R B A THI PR S SRR N IR 3, 207, 0007 (ZF——
iF: #INRBE152,435,00070) , TMRREH, AH8EEHZ
B AR FRE) % R H A P L R A
18, w8 A AR, 928, 000 (—F—
—4F: A AR08, 725, 00070) EAY AR H94, 187, 000
TG (4 #ARHEG, 752, 0007T) .

BERILEEDL, AR EH O BARE R

PR RBU B MFRIR, CIRPA AR & 75 R
RSB B IR R A R L R AR SRS

mAEMBEEEAFMAA]39



2012 4 B

ANNUAL REPORT NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE R H=1—HIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1.1  Going concern (Continued)

The Group suspended investment in PDS projects without
custorner confract on 29 March 2012 to reduce cash
outflows on staff costs, rental and other operating costs.
Cash flows from operating activities of the Group will
maintain a healthy financial position.

On 4 September 2012, the convertible bonds holders passed
a resolution to extend the maturity date of the convertible
bonds to 10 September 2015 and significantly reduced the
cash outflows for settling the liabilities of the Group.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had current liabilities of
RMBA43,783,000 (2011: approximately RMB134,720,000), among
which approximately RMB23,475,000 (2011: approximately
RMB15,146,000) of receipts in advance from customers
and RMB Nil (2011: RMB106,786,000) of convertible bonds.
Most of the receipts in advance would be recognised as
revenue in 2012 and later years, and will not lead to any cash
outflow in future. While the convertible bonds, the maturity
date of the bonds was extended to year 2015 and hence
there was no cash outflow for the settlement of convertible
bonds in 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Excluding receipts in advance and convertible bonds, the
current ratio (current asset/current liabilities) of the Group
as at 31 December 2012 was 1.57 (2011: 2.1).

Meanwhile, considering the working capital and long term
funding demand for future development, the Group will
consider to raise funds through bank loans, issuance of new
shares, convertible bonds and issuance of new debts.

2.1.2  Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures — Transfer of Financial Assets in the current
year. The amendment requires additional disclosure about

financial assets that have been transferred but not
derecognised to enable the user of the Group’s financial

40 | VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED
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2.1.2

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a)

(b)

HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1
(Amendments)

HKAS 19 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 28 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group(Continued)

statements to understand the relationship with their
associated liabilities. Inaddition, the amendment requires
disclosures about the entity’s continuing involvement in
derecognised assets to enable the user to evaluate the nature
of, and risks associated with, such involvement. The
amendments did not have an impact on the Group’s
financial position, performance or its disclosures.

Other than as disclosed above, there are no HKFRSs or
HK(IFRIC) interpretations that are effective for the first time
for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2012 that
would be expected to have a material impact on the Group.

New and revised Standards and Interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s financial staternents, have been issued, but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities®
Financial Instruments *
Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures '
Consolidated Financial Statement *
Joint Arrangements *
Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities?
Fair Value Measurement *
Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income '
Employee Benefits*

Separate Financial Statements®

Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities*

212

(a)

(b)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures(Continued)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2015

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to present
separately the items of other comprehensive income that
would be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain
conditions are met from those that would never be reclassified
to profit or loss.

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements relating to the
preparation of consolidated accounts and HK(SIC)-Int 12
Consolidation — Special purpose entities. It introduces a single
control model to determine whether an investee should be
consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity has power over
the investee, exposure to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and the ability to use its power to affect the
amount of those returns.

HKFRS 11, which replaces HKAS 31, Interests in joint
ventures, divides joint arrangements into joint operations and
joint ventures. Entities are required to determine the type of an
arrangement by considering the structure, legal form,
contractual terms and other facts and circumstances relevant to
their rights and obligations under the arrangement. Joint
arrangements which are classified as joint operations under
HKFRS 11 are recognised on a line-by-line basis to the extent
of the joint operator’s interest in the joint operation. All other
joint arrangements are classified as joint ventures under
HKFRS 11 and are required to be accounted for using the
equity method. Proportionate consolidation is no longer
allowed as an accounting policy choice.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures(Continued)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the
disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated
structured entities. The disclosures required in HKFRS 12 are
generally more extensive than those required in the current
standards.

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs
with a single source of fair value measurement guidance.
HKFRS 13 also contains extensive disclosure requirements
about fair value measurements for both financial instruments
and non-financial instruments. HKFRS 13 is effective as from
1 January 2013, but retrospective adoption is not required.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers that these new and
revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Group’s results of operations and financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made
up to 31 December 2012.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (“its subsidiaries”). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govemn the financial and operating
policies of an enfity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. The existence and effect of potential voting right
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.
The Group also assess existence of control when it does not
have more than 50% of voting right but is able to govern the
financial and operating policies by virtue of de-facto control.

De-facto control may arise from circumstances where it
does not have more than 50% of the voting power but is
able to govern the financial and operating policies by virtue
of de-facto control.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation. Profits and
losses resulting from inter~company transactions that are
recognised in assets are also eliminated. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (i1) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognise as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group. When
assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or
fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets (i.e. reclassified to statement of
comprehensive income or transferred directly to retained
carnings as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (“foreign currencies”) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (ie. the cumency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are refranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
meastred in terms of historical cost in a foreign cunrency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settflernent of monetary iterns,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and Labilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Renminbi “RIVMB”) using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rales prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control
over ajointly controlled entity that includes a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

i Revenues from the transfer of new drug developed
and formulation data are recognised upon transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the compound and
data are delivered to customers.

ii  Revenues from contracted research and development,
pharmaceutical application, registration and testing
services are recognised to the extent of the milestone
payments earned in accordance with the applicable
performance requirements and contractual terms and,
where appropriate, as the related costs are incurred.
Payments received that are related to future performance
are deferred and recorded as revenues as they are earned
over the specified future performance periods.

iii  Subject to the terms as stated in the technology
transfer agreements and the buyers’ success in
commercialisation of the products to which the
technology transferred is applied, the Group may
receive additional royalty income or profit sharing
income in the future. Should there be any royalty
income or sharing of profit, they will be recognised
when the right to receive the income is established.

iv  Service income is recognised when services are
rendered.

v Royalty income on drugs produced by third parties
using the Group’s technical know-how is
recognised when the right to receive is established.

vi Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

vii Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEEFHESREE @)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Leasing 2.5 FHA
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and R FEA R M G HE < 4B K B A R e 7
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are AFNZ A . B HARFH A7 A B 1A
classified as operating leases.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense REMAHSHRGHHED USSR AMY, &
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where HHEHAF TSGR R,
another systematic basis is more representative of the REEFHA pTEE A 2 al A AR R R B S
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.
In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into T 7 SR FRA RRISCIROH S0, WA I B E e s
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a Ry AR o LB SRR e B SR
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is KA A e F A EE RS RN RS
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a #E,
straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

2.6 Borrowing costs 2.6 FEE AR

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they are
incurred.
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2.8

2.9

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in
statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which they become receivable.

Employee benefits
Pension obligations

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share-based payment reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in statement of comprehensive income such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to capital reserve. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will continue to be
held in share-based payment reserve.

2.7

28

29

2012 fF L 5
ANNUAL REPORT

BE_Z— A+ -A=1+—HI¥E

For the year ended 31 December 2012

EEEFEOREE &)

BUF B &

it A B R A 22 I A AT Bl <2 B A R
A AHSCBUEL IR AE Bl < R A R o

R A0 2 2 A 2 B o el i AR ol ) A S 4R 3 D
PR ST 2% 50 T 0 AR A AT ) o A 22 B B < MEMAC
SRR R S, RINE A BREUN B SRR .

BT@EF

BTG TY, AEMEEAREREEN

B s S P

S T R IRRETA B2 1 H 2 P{EIT B E s
B2 ATE, TIR BRI LAE AR S, HERS (
LA SEA 2 fefith) e .

TR ARSI, RS AE BT TR A R B 2 T
A H . RREME R R HE () A
AR, B RGPS M E T A HE, T LA
AT Z kS AR

ER IR R TR, SRR AR ST Rt e
o BRI R A e R BRI B R
BB R T AT AR, AR LA 2
b2 fifi s e B SR R T

EaRuEXARAA40



2012 4 E W&

HWE_F-FT A HIRERE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

2.10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current and
deferred tax.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the
reporting period multiplied by the taxable profit. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in statement of
comprehensive income, except when it relates to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEESEUEME (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11  Property, plant and equipment 211 . BB RERE
Property, plant and equipment held for use in the FEE R s, BRIEATBUR@MSE, s
production or supply of goods or services, or for SRR AR A B AT AT TR A
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated W) ¥R
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of M. R AR T E S ResEE S, R AR
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual TEEAL PR L AR A B .
values over their estimated useful lives, using the EIR I e T A RS, FRREEM T
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual {hEtea)r ENIR. Y2, B RS T UL E AN
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end AT
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The
estimated useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment are as follows:
Leasehold improvements 5 years B FERE BEE
Machinery and equipment 5—10 years HESL T S0 5—104E
Motor vehicles 5 years R B
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised Y. R BRI B R B A T e
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are FEHA & Ao 0] H 48 2 ) 25 e U he s . M.
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any T M s T H B pE R e 2 AT 2 B s 48 (3%
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an SZTEH 2z BT a TE R e S AR TR S 2 = RE s TR
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as TREAIE H U R 2 AR REST N R 7R .
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
statement of comprehensive income.

212  Work-in-progress 212 TEEM

Work-in-progress is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, cost of development
including costs that have been incurred for the provision
of pharmaceutical application, registration and testing
services, is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Work-in-progress (Continued)

Where the outcome of a pharmaceutical development and
clinical research contract or service can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the
reporting date, as measured by the proportion that
contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to
the total contract costs or the proportion that contract
revenue billed or recognised for work performed to date
bear to the total contract sums, whichever is the lower,
except where this would not be representative of the stage
of completion.

Where the outcome of a contract or service cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable that
they will be recoverable.

When it is probable that the total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in statement of comprehensive income.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is
included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories,

including financial assets held for trading and those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

— it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

— it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

- the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

— it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in statement of comprehensive income
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the other income line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in note 3.
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2.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Confinued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade receivables and
other receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest and principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

- Disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 90 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in statement of
comprehensive income. When trade receivables and
other receivables are considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to statement of comprehensive income.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through statement of comprehensive income to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.
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2.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis .

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the

financial liabilities are either held for trading or it is those
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.
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2.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been incurred principally for the purpose of

repurchasing in the near future; or

- on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

- itis aderivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

— the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

— it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in statement of comprehensive income

excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including other payables and
accruals and short term loan are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds

Conversion options that are not settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of equity instruments are recognised as financial

instruments carried at fair value through profit or loss.

On initial recognition, the convertible bonds with the
derivatives component as a whole are designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The
entire convertible bonds are initially recognised at fair
value on the date of issue and are subsequently measured
at fair value until extinguished on conversion or
redemption. Changes in the fair value of the entire
convertible bonds are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income as they arise. Interest on
convertible bonds designated as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss is included in the fair value
gain or loss for that period.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the convertible bonds designated as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in the statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in statement of comprehensive income.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues
to recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date
of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the part no
longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in statement of
comprehensive income. A cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of
the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in statement
of comprehensive income.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or
loss, only if terms are substantially different, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part

of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

2.15  Share Capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16  Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses. Provision for an onerous contract is
recognised when the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received. The unavoidable costs
under a contract reflect the least net cost of existing from
the contract, which is the lower of the cost fulfilling the
contract and any compensation or penalties arising from
failure to fulfil the contract.
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(a)

(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provision (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(1) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the parent of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member

of a Group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
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(a)

(b)
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2.17

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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31

(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.

Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD), United
States Dollars (*“USD”) and Swiss Franc (“CHF”).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities. In
addition, the conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) Government.

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of
the transactions denominated and settled in RMB.
Foreign exchange risk also arises from certain
financial assets and convertible bonds which are
denominated in HKD, USD and CHF. The Group
currently does not hedge its foreign exchange

exposure.

At 31 December 2012, if USD and CHF had
weakened/strengthened by 5% respectively against
Renminbi with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss for the year would have been
increased/decreased approximately RMB4,500,000.
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(2)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risks

The Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate.
The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises from
borrowings and its convertible notes. Borrowings
and convertible notes arranged at variable rates and
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The short term borrowings of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 bore
interest at floating rates. The convertible notes bear
fixed interest rate during the Interest Period. The interest
rate and repayment terms of the borrowings and
convertible noles outstanding at the end of the reporting
period are disclosed in notes 25 and 26 respectively.

It is the Group’s policy to keep its short term
borrowings at floating rate of interest so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider restructure the
Group’s credit facilities should the need arise.

(iii) Price risk

The Group is exposed to securities price risk because
investments held by the Group are classified in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value through profit or loss. The Group has not
mitigated its price risk arising from investments in
securities financial assets.

For the Group’s investments that are publicly traded,
the fair value is determined with reference to quoted
market prices. For the Group’s investments that are
not publicly traded, the Group uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing
at the reporting date.

66 | VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED

B G RIB RATE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEBRBEE )
Wi M (#)
A (80

(ii) =R

22 BB A T E 2 P E B S R
LR R m s A . AR R A
o A AT s, R EAE AR
] Y PR 5 1] Ay A 5 B A TR < ) 22 JL B
e AP R = Eg. R R
ST ZHA=1T—H, REFEARARZBERE
AR B ARSI, AT
SER JREGIARASE H AR R R R TR R
) RO A B 25 B 26 b 5

SR 2 T P RUEF F BBRIRE SR, REF
AR . AREBL AR BB
ERTER, SREGEAEHEE.

(iii) HH R

ARG EMBIRMR O EH A% A REEER
HRERACHR SRR, A S T e A R R L
M. AGEBSA R AP T R

HRAEMP AHTHNER, AREEHESE
WG ERERE. WARTIZNRE, AERER
e H ARG, IR A ik,
AR BRI F A F

R B HE T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2012 F EW &
ANNUAL REPORT

HE_F——F+ A=t HIMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 MBRREE #)
31  Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MERR @
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) T35 g (FD
(iii) Price risks (Continued) 3) TSRS (40
At 31 December 2012, if the market prices of these R+ H=+—H, nREHEE L
securities financial assets had increased/decreased TR/ T BR10% CHA R FRAMEREA ), ARE AT
by 10% with all other variables held constant, BRI AT DA k.
Group’s post=tax loss for the year ended would have
been changed as follows:
2012 2011
R —F -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ANRETT
Post=tax loss itk R
increase/(decrease) i/ GRisb)
- Market prices increased by 10% — i LR 10% (180) (180)
- Market prices decreased by 10% —HE I 10% 180 180
(b) Credit risk (b) il

The Group’s credit risk arises from trade receivables and
bank balances.

For the sales of products to third party customers, there is
a concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables as the largest five customers contribute
around 1% (2011 Nil%)of the balance. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that credit is only granted to
customers with an appropriate credit history and a good
reputation. The exposure to credit risk is closely

monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 HERREE (#) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 MREEER ()
31  Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 4R () 31  Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 MERR @
© Liquidity risk © Fiah A (© Liquidity risk (Continued) () BN (D
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining FAR AW B v AR R R A A TR B BRAT N
. 2
sufficient cash and bank balances. The liquidity of the ak, AEERET RS LI E RS 2 L. Company AL
Group is adequately managed and monitored by SR A S M AR R TR AR At 31 December 2012
maintaining sufficient cash, which is available to meet its —® .t = H
zlclmtlnuou:};1 ogeraUO;laJ need}j In thel ozmonl‘ of | ;16 Less than Between 1 Between 2
Ilfctors, the Group does not have any signincant iquidity 1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total
e Uy Sk 124 254 it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
The table below analyses the Group ’ 5 financial liabilities TFEEAAL H A F 2 R ) B H ARRT5E NERTTE AT NRBTF 5T
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining SR EESMaE. WRSELSSRATHEES
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. o )
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual Convertible bond ﬂ&}ﬁﬁf 1,020 B 91,875 92,895
undiscounted cash flows. Other payables and accruals HAGREAT O AT 4,380 - - 4,380
Amounts due to subsidiaries AT FATE 18,443 - - 18,443
At 31 December 2011
Group AL —Z -4+ -HA=+—H
Less than Between 1 Between 2
At 31 December 2012 1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total
“F -4+ A=1+—H WgiSE: 124 2-5 4 At
Less than Between 1 Between 2 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total NS S N ERTIE AERTIE  ARETIE
Sk 124 2-54 frat
Hl tl 4 t)
RMB 00_":’ RMB 00_0 RMB O(E' RMB O(E' Convertible bond R diess 107,715 - - 107,715
ARBTR  ARWTIE  ARBTE  ARETI Other payables and accruals A A R A 2 P 1,025 - - 1,025
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAF2 ] 17,779 - - 17,779
Convertible bond QIE: 3 e 1,020 - 91,875 92,895
Other payables and accruals LR R A 16,214 - - 16,244
. £ et
Bank borrowing AT 3,000 3,000 3.2 Capital risk management 32 BErEpEE
At 31 December 2011
—F A The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to A4 R ) R SRS, SRR
Lessthan  Between 1 Between 2 safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going AR A AR, s B s 8 | 4R
1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total concern in order to provide returns to the shareholders R,
DTALAE 124 2-5 4 it and benefits for other stakeholders. The Group’s overall
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 strategy remains unchanged from prior years.
AE#TT ARWTT  ARWTT ARWTT
The capital structure of the Group represents equity AAEEG AR ER AT R B (S, O s
Convertible bond TR 107,715 - - 107,715 attributable to owners of the parent, comprising issued i A B AR 2 A R
Other payables and accruals HoAth AT R A 11,778 - - 11,778 share capital and retained earnings.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the

AR EHEE RAKE R, AR T LASHEA A5 I SRR

Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to the .
p iy 2l P BRI TR

shareholders or issue new shares.

68 | VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED BeRHEZAFRAAIGO



2012 4 F5 #
ANNUAL REPORT

HWE_F-FT A HIRERE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

3.3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

—  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

—— Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

——  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

All of the Group’s financial instruments are included in
level 1 as of 31 December 2013 and 2012.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices on the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use
of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are

observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

70 | VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED

3.3

Fre B IHE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RBRER )
ARRERMH

TREMER TSR AEENRN M TR, AR
BRI T

— [SEERARESRTRAIERE CREE
(BRD .

—  BFEFRESIRWEANS, RIETEREER (
RIEHR) B CRIVRE RS S8 e
HRERAR F2) .

— AR RATs B E Ak & 6T ER (BIRE
M (B .

FEER =Rt H=1—HM
SR TABUAREAEEHIOEEMER GEHRD .

FATEEE T 5 H E 2 S T B2 4 el E A4 5 B iR
M. IR TR SE R 5 T, 257 .
ARfT. ERAEE. e TURBBIEE T HEES, B
AR AT R RN R LTS S, Rl
GIR A BRI . ARSRB T SRR 2 TR A
ERHANE. BN T RAEESHF.

IR 715 H W 2 S TR 2 2 B T3 6 &l
{7 ERET RS BT LR PR A A R
FTEREE TSR, AT R K PR B 24 m) SR At
HIRKHEFE . ISR R ffE T R TSR s B2
PR THE R, T REREES.

Fr B BRI

33

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in

level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for

similar instruments.

Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

There were no level 3 financial instruments for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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(a)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 2, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Provision for impairment of receivables

The Group provides for impairment of receivables based
on an assessment of the collectability of trade and other
receivables. Provisions for impairment are applied to
trade and other receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of receivables
and doubtful debt expense in the period in which such

estimate is changed.
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(b)

(c)

(d

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Net realisable value of work-in-progress

Provision for slowing-moving work=in-progress is based on
the aged of the respective project and the accomplishment
of certain stage of milestone during the process of
development. The assessment of the provision amount
involved management judgement and estimation. Where
the actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the carrying value of work-in-progress and provision
charge/write-back in the period such estimate changed.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines that the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimation is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions. Depreciation charge will be
reassessed where useful live is different from the
previous estimation, or it will write-off or write-down

obsolete assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current income tax provision
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period

in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilized. The outcome of

their actual utilisation may be different.
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®

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Impairment of property, plant and equipment is reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on fair value less costs to sell
calculations or market valuations. These calculations
require the use of judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset value
may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs to sell or net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business;
and (ii1) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management
in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could affect the net present value used in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of the operations.

Fair value of convertible bonds

The Group makes reference to the independent valuer’s
valuations to determine the fair value of convertible
bonds at fair value through profit or loss which in turn are
determined using a valuation technique, the Monte Carlo
Simulation Model. Judgment is required in the
calculation of such valuation. Changes in the underlying
assumptions  could  materially impact  other

comprehensive income and profit and loss, respectively.
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION BB RS EER
Breakdown of the revenue from all services is as follows: HONGEE
2012 2011
E A B4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#BTT NIHET T
Analysis of revenue by category: W NS HE:
Contracted clinical research services A EEEY) B R B R PRI 9T RS U 16,492 13,935
(VPS) —REE T
Contracted pharmaceutical development ErHISEY) B S BRER PR ST ARES N 11,695 2,696
services (PDS) — AR E A
Import registration services (IRS) cARETSHINE PN 266 1,439
Sales of active pharmaceutical ingredients S AT RO LA N 85 29
products (API)
Transfer of patent SRR 150 -
Total ot 28,688 18,099

Turnover and contribution to profit from operations by
segment has not been presented as over 90% of the
Group’s turnover was derived from the pharmaceutical
registration, application and testing in the PRC and all
assets were located in the PRC for both years.

Information about major customers is as follows:

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group is as

F A SR I 90% 2 2 S AR A 5 FL h B 2 B8
AR P AR, TR T I L R (R
PEA B, R 2SRRI BT Z AL
TrEHT

GlLER-=-daFa-¢oH

FARAEE A B 20 5 2 W02 A A B A S A1 0% LA
ZIEOTR:

follows:

2012 2011

St —F 4

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR¥T T
Customer A A - 2,035
Customer B 2B 5,300 -
Customer C EFC 4,500 -
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6 OTHER INCOME 6 Hpe A 8 Expenses by nature 8 BHALE
2012 2011 Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative BN AR RS E TR
- St TE——4F expenses are analysed as follows:
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT I A RHETI e o
- S ZE——4F
Government subsidies BBl 258 1, 348 RMB’000 RMBE’000
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets e o AREIB R LR 227 (487) ARKTIT A RHEFIT
at fair value through profit or loss SRR A REEEE Depreciation (Note 12) HE (fEE12) 2,713 2,584
. . s/ (%) Auditor’s remuneration EEHEH 630 780
Dividends income HEFHCA 42 106 ) ._
Compensation income BEABIRC 308 362 Employee benefit expenses b %‘ﬁﬂ #H 10,410 19,547
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEMZE. BBz 56 54 Compensation SeEfE 5,177 3,503
and equipment Operating lease payment BEHERH 1,013 2,045
Reversal of impairment loss on other Al R 2 4R 2, 400 - Provision for impairment loss e R il (BE18) - 7,296
receivables (Note 19) of trade receivables (Note 18)
Reversal of impairment loss on trade PN BRI (B TR JeAa A 150 - Impairment loss on property, plant W, B GRIEREEE (12 - 3,243
receivables (Note 18) and equipment (Note 12)
Others HAty 270 94 Impairment loss on other receivables (Note 19)  HAMBRWERIEREERL  (FHEE1D) 524 11,113
Total &t 3,711 1,477
During the year, the Group received approximately A AR B ST MO TH B MEBUR & B A G
RMB 258,000 (2011: approximately RMB1,348,000) 258, 0007T (—F——4F: ARKEL, 348, 00075) .
of government subsidies towards the research and
development projects.
Finance costs - NET 7 g 2 SN E - 4z
9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 9 JREEFIEH
2012 2011
. St S B4 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000 St —F—4F
ABHT T AR¥®TIT RMB’000 RMB’000
Finance costs: R e ABRHET T ARHETIT
— Exchange losses —FE R (1, 416) - Wages and salaries TEREHE 7,768 15,682
Retirement benefits scheme contributions B AAEFRET S ek 2,196 3,235
— Interest charges —FE#EH (3, 768) (4, 940) Employee share-based payment JE& B ATk 365 377
— Others —HAfih (86) (74) Other staff benefits Hith 81 253
(5, 270) (5,014)
Total At 10,410 19,547
Finance income: AR :
— Exchange gains —RE s 97 6,914
— Interest income — ] B 22 298
119 7,212
Finance (costs)/income — net BE (BFD M - 88 (5,151) 2,198
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9 Employee benefit expense (Continued) 9 BREEATH @@ 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued) 9 BEEFSH @)
(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (a) HHESHEEEN S (b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) TAmmaE A+ (&)
i i =a ¢ AL A TG
. EATALH AR [ o The emoluments of each of the five highest paid F AT EIE B 2 B 4305 AR 1, 000, 00076
Director’s fee Salaries and bonus Provident fund contribution ~ Employee share-based payment Total employees are less than RMBLOO0,0(X).
—B-TEE R} ZFTAE B4R T ZFR R B R R R4
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 )
ARMTT ARMTE — ARMTE ARMTT  ARWTE ARMTE  ARMTT ARSTT  ARETL ARETT During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group TRASFEREN, AEEMRE AN 7 FEHN LA ST
RMB'000  RMB*000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000 to any director of the Company or the five highest paid AL AT, 2SI S T A S
;‘;‘H"“ m, Xia GUO i " 558 s ) . " 606 606 individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the SERY, SAERBEREE, MRS NIRRT
: - Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the EE
Maria, Xue Mei SONG - 382 348 2 20 40 a1 446 409 . . .
FEH directors has waived any emoluments in the year.
'E%FENG } . . 6 6 6 6
Xin WU (e ) ) ) ] ] . . ) 10 INCOME TAX 10 BB
B (BT
%ﬁm Xin ZHANG - - - 6 6 6 6 No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as P A AR A | S A s A A AT ] AR R
Ming Yu WU w0 ) ) ) a0 the Group had no estimated assessable profit generated in WOl AR A E R B (T ) .
KA .
Hong Kong for the year (2011: Nil).
Paul CONTOMICHALOS . . . 7 7 7 7 - _ s " _
Paul CONTOMICHALOS A SRS AL T AR R BAR B AR . 1A
i 50 - - - - 50 PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been calculated on the FE—— T A= HWEA SRR 21 525% (
L i Lisng (e 2) " 3 " estimated assessable profit for the year according to the TEAE 150 AAER, IR S e
FRE (tRE) relevant laws and regulations. The applicable income tax F#EARAE, ItREEECEBERARAT, o
Jing An Zhang - - - - rate is ranging from 15% to 25% as at 31 December 2012 HEBRPEMARAR, IERERESBERRE
o T —— — P E— (2011: 15%). During the year, JL 3t ALB ALY BEAT WA B A R BB e B 2
it B AR AT, b E R e BEREAIRAR, b Ryrmr R A 3E T T B RS REE A5
Notes e HE2EOCERENFAEIRAR, L RER SR ER
o ' HARAT and WHEFAEMFIEFIE  have
1) The director was resigned on 24 May 2012, 1. T B20124E5 H 24 H BEEE applied .to the PRC tax authorit).r as High-tech Enterprises
2) The director was appointed on 24 May 2012. 2. R 20124E5H 4 HZEAT: and subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax at 15%.
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) B =10 PG The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated O mEs R P AR E AT :
statement of comprehensive income represents:
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in EEERFMALOE -2 (ZF—F, —8)
the Group for the year included two (2011: two) directors AATIFEE. MMAFEANE O Mot 2=
. . _ . N 2012 2011
whose emolument are reflected in the analysis presented H (TR =4 ZMEnT T g
above. The emoluments payable of the remaining three - — — .
(2011: three) individuals during the year are as follows: RMB*000 RMB O(E]
ARET T ANE¥TI0
2012 2011 PRC enterprise income tax HEl A 2E TSR
—F -4 B — current year — AR 44 81
RMB’000 RMB’000 — under/(over)-provision in prior years — AR A AR G ) 8 44 69 (1,397)
IN-Y =55 N REETIE Deferred taxation (Note 15) IBYERTE (MfinE1s) - 5,340
Salaries and allowances . 1,560 2,461 N
i S Total o 113 4,024
Employee share-based payment H TR AT 84 111
Retirement benefits scheme contributions IBRAREFIFT AL 93 81
Total &5t 1,737 2,653
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10 INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 10 Fristg A &)
The tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax differs LIBRERRTAF] (HeHH) ZelEnt, AfEm ArimsLs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using PRC R LA S AR R T PR A R R
Enterprise Income Tax rate as follows:
2012 2011
TF TR ZHF A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANBRHT I ANEWTIT
Profit/(loss) before tax P AT 4R 3,231 (149,772)
Calculated at tax rate of 25%(2011:15%) DL25%FE A5 (2011 15%) 808 (22,466)
Effect of differential tax rate of overseas entities BANEEARR RS - 9,394
Under/(over)-provision in prior years A e 69 (1,397)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RIS R 2,689 -
Derecognition of previously recognised deferred tax assets [R50 BIESE IR AERLE L - 5,340
Utilisation of tax loss not recognised ARMESEAIHES 2 I H (514) -
Revenue not taxable for taxation purpose ANTEEFRZ PN (3.013) -
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose ATTIRTF) L B 82 13,153
Income tax expense ALEREFTAIAR # H 113 4,024
11 BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 11 EARRHERER
(a) Basic loss per share (a) B
Basic carnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing FE AR F (B8 FIEH 5 E A E R A R 8
the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company by TR SR A R ) () B4R Y AR A A BB IR
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue I35
during the year.
2012 2011
e S —E AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AT ANE#TIo
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of AT EEE N EALBF (5 H) 3,207 (152,435)
the Company (RMB’000) (A RHETIT)
Weighted average number of ordinary EEH T @B R (TR 364,308 364,216
shares in issue (thousands)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share AR R AR AR R AR (1R (N B/ 0.88 (41.85)

(RMB cents per share)
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11 BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 11 HAFEEERIER &)
(Continued)
®) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (b) R R/ (518)
The calculation of the diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the P R R AR R T IRC T B A P AR 2 ) 3 e e TR
year is based on the profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary ARG S B AR 2 AT B S . R
equity shareholders and adjusted to eliminate the interest SEHYREEE453, 118, 000% (—F—3F4F. 453, 144, 000
expense less the tax effect. The weighted average number ) R AT A R RS B T 452 L R S e
of approximately 453,118,000 (2011: approximately LT A TR MBS ER S
453,144,000) ordinary shares after adjusting for the effect 88, 810, 000% ( —F——1F. 88,928, 000 M &
of the dilutive potential ordinary shares to be issued to the PE e, SHEWF:
exercise of the options granted under all relevant Share
Option Schemes and the conversion of convertible bonds
as detailed below of approximately 88,810,000 (2011:
approximately 88,928,000) shares, calculated as follows:
2012 2011
e St S B/ ——4F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARETIT MNE#TIC
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners FAFIHA NEAEER/ (B8 3,207 (152,435)
of the Company
Interest expense on convertible bonds TSR S (BRE 3,715 3,851
(net of tax)
Profit/(loss) used to determine diluted FH LG4 S 28R O 2 R 4R 6,922 (148,584)
earnings per share
Weighted average number of ordinary CFeATHE B IR (T 364,308 364,216
shares in issue (thousands)
Adjustment for: L
— Effect of deemed issue of ordinary s FRAm A 2 ] el SR T ) mT AR R 88,810 88,928
hares under the Company’s AR REMEAT BT AR E
Share Option Schemes and the FITEREE (TR
conversion of convertible bonds (thousands)
Weighted average number of ordinary AR B R R 453,118 453,144
shares for diluted earnings per share “FHEIME (D

(thousands)

No diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended
31 December 2012 and 2011 is presented as the assumed
conversion of convertible bonds would result in a
increase/decrease in profit/loss per share respectively.

E PR A T ) B T BRI AR R Bl T REE AT R, T
B SR BRI s IR, HAREIIEE—F
— R CF—HF T A= HIEREEE
e 7 s 4
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 12 Wik, WG RRE— KN 13 NEW DRUGS TECHNOLOGY - GROUP 13 PEEECAT — KW
Leasehold Machinery and RMB’OOO_
improvements equipment Motor vehicles Total INE S
HEYHEE B GEE K A=l
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 At 1 January 2011 w_F—F—H—H
N S TH AR¥TIT AR¥WTT ARETC Cost A 18,352
Accumulated amortisation and impairment  RFT S & i H (18,352)
At 1 January 2011 R_F—%—HA—H
Cost % 5,595 24,966 1,010 31,571 Net book amount HE T R .
Accumulated depreciation i (3,807) (10,080) (946) (14,833)
Year ended 31 December 2011 w_2—F+-H=+—H
Net book amount BRI A 1,788 14,886 64 16,738 Opening net book amount e 1 P (S A AR -
Amortisation charge A (Mi3Es) -
Year ended 31 December 2011 R —%——&+=-H=+—H Disposal A (1,671)
Opening net book amount FRIEFHE IR B AR 1,788 14,886 64 16,738 Impairment AN E 1,671
Additions A - 612 - 612
Disposals e - (593) (187) (780) Closing net book amount JR T M EA A AR -
Depreciation (Note 8) I8 (ffieks) (205) (2,379) - (2,584)
Impairment (Note 8) WAE (BfTES) (1,319) (1,868) (56) (3.243) At 31 December 2011 R_F—%+_HA=1+—8
Written back EIE: - 593 187 780 Cost i 16,681
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 274 S K A (16,681)
Closing net book amount T T R AR R R 264 11,251 8 11,523
Net book amount BT EHE -
At 31 December 2011 R_F—F+_HA=+—H
Cost A 5,595 24,985 823 31,403 Year ended 31 December 2012 w=_2——F+=-H=+—8H
Accumulated depreciation BEting (5,331) (13,734) (815) (19,880) Opening net book amount B T PR (AR e 4 -
Amortisation charge A -
Net book amount & B E 264 11,251 8 11,523
Closing net book amount B TAT BB A R -
Year ended 31 December 2012 #—F—_4#F+_"H=+—H
Opening net book amount R A A AR AR 264 11,251 8 11,523 At 31 December 2012 R_F——F+_HA=+—H
Additions AR 77 87 645 809 Cost [ 16,681
Disposals e - - (304) (304) Accumulated amortisation and impairment  FAFH#EH S (16,681)
Depreciation (Note 8) P8 (BiiEs) (221) (2,364) (128) 2,713)
Written back L - - 301 301 Net book amount BRTEIME -
Closing net book amount BR B E A R 120 8,974 522 9,616
At 31 December 2012 REF—ZHF+ZA=1T—H The new drugs technology included above have finite LEIF 2 R A TR A AER], W ZB
Cost %S 5,672 25,072 1,164 31,908 useful lives, over which the assets are amortised. The PRGN . A5 13 B 2 R0k T B BH s A 2 8
Accumulated depreciation HeHTE M (5,552) (16,098) (642) (22,292) amortisation period for development costs incurred on WA 2 T4
and impairment the Group's new drugs technology is five years.
Net book amount FRIEVTHE 120 8,974 522 9,616
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No amortization charges (2011: RMB Nil) is included in
the “administrative expenses” during the year.

AEFEHRARAESHBEEN, —F——F:
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14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 14 B} I 2 IR — A ] 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 14 MR AT — AT &)
(CONTINUED)
2012 2011
—% _.,:_;15 :g—,—qa Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity
RMB 00_'_) RMB OD_O and kind of legal entity issued share capital/ interest Held
ARKET I ARMET 7T registered capital
Unlisted shares, at cost E| PG 4 e DN 30,374 30,374 o . . ) - e
L L b ATIER PR R RN FEREER CEA LAY B A
Less: provision for impairment W PR (29,646) (29,646)
AR A
728 728
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 17) RSB A RIFKIH (BRELT) 49,587 49,587 Shares indirectly held by the Company:
Less: provision for impairment . RERR (37,502) (37,502) AT R -
12,085 12,085
Total &t 12,813 12,813 bR fE A E Y% Beijing, the PRC, The research and US$865,000 100%
HRAE] Limited liability company  development of new
The cost of the unlisted shares is based on the book value 4B BB 2 A e A B R E AL H B drug p.'reparation, raw
of the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries attributable 5B B A R v R R materfals, suppl.emenlary
to the Group on the date of the Group Reorganisation. materials and biodrugs
technological transfer
The amounts due from subsiciaries classified as non-current assets BB B A TS E R R, M S R and services
are unsecured, interest-free and considered equity in nature. . R E AT,
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at KR —FE——FE - F—F+_A=+—H Jb s ot i 4 R Gil- 7kl 5T K Br SR a | 865,00035 7T 100%
31 December 2012 and 2011 are as follows: ZEZMEATREENT B AR A A AREATAF JEAEL, BB AT R
(LI Sy &
LI BT
%
Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity
d kind of legal enti issued sh ital/ i Held
and kind oft fegal entity issued share capita interest He T A AT Hanzhong, the PRC, Sales and manufacturing ~ US$600,000 51%
registered capital - s . .
ARRAE Limited liability company of active pharmaceutical
AL BRE B KL A TEEBEE  ORFRA P s ingredients products
A
Shares directts hold by tho G T A L T R B T S R 600,0003 7% S1%
ares directly he e Company: e .
YRy pany HIRAF] AT AT RSP
AT E BRI
Venturepharm Laboratories British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), Investment holding US$100 100% VPSCRO Group Inc. British Virgin Islands, Inactive Uss1 100%
(BVI) Limited (“VP (BVI)”) Limited liability company Limited liability
company
Venovo Pharma US Inc. British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), Investment holding US$1 100%
Limited liability company VPSCRO Group Inc. SEE LR, ( TBVL) I ESTH 100%
- AR A
Venturepharm Laboratories W E R ( TBVI) ) RIS 10037C 100%
(BVI) Limited (“VP (BVI)”) AREEAT
Venovo Pharma US Inc. Y pE AR ( TBVIL ) Bl e~ IESM 100%
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14 B A TR — AAT ()

(CONTINUED)
Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity
and kind of legal entity issued share capital/ interest Held
registered capital
AIE BTt 0 B 2 A E A TR EEA TR AR fir RS
AEEEA
Shares indirectly held by the Company:(Continued)
A TR AR (D)
R AT RHERSIPE Hainan, the PRC, The research and US$360,000 100%
Limited liability development of drugs,
company natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological
transfer of and services
for the research and
development of biodrugs,
natural drugs and
synthetic drugs;
pharmacodynamic and
clinical research of drugs
ERA R R R PR, SEYSEECE 2 NN 360,000 7T 100%
AREEAH RAREE T B B
DS e BB A Y BE
RIREE R B & TR EEh
otk IR S
BRS¢ R R AR 5
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14 WA TN —EAT ()

(CONTINUED)
Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity
and kind of legal entity issued share capital/ interest Held
registered capital
ASIEz LA B R R E A TEREEY BB TRA fir i Aa
REf A

Shares indirectly held by the Company:(Continued)

AT BT R ()

b et bl B EE] Beijing, the PRC, The research and US$200,000 100%

HFRAE] Limited liability development of drugs,

company natural drugs and

synthetic drugs;
technological transfer
of and services for the
research and development
of biodrugs, natural
drugs and synthetic
drugs; pharmacodynamic
and clinical research of
drugs

Jen a2 B e B EER B hEdL, ST B B3 2E 200,000357C 100%

AHRAH AREEAT] FAREE i BB FEE
WET B PR A P8R
FIREE i R TRAE R

BT M s B

LI 5T M AR 5T
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14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

14 HRATIHEZ — AAT (8

B I B BRI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CONTINUED)
Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity
and kind of legal entity issued share capital/ interest Held
registered capital
A FRE PRI B2 s B s A FHREE T CEATE A Bir o5 P 2
Al A
Shares indirectly held by the Company:(Continued)
ATl A B (80)
b B B A R R Beijing, the PRC, The research and US$200,000 100%
BHIRAH] Limited liability development of new
company drugs, natural drugs,
and synthetic drugs;
technological transfer of
and services for research
and development of
biodrugs, natural drugs
and synthetic drugs,
pharmacodynamic and
clinical research of drugs
R E A B R FREIER, WHoT M B 2 ok 200,00057C 100%
ARAT AREEAT RAREEN BB e
5T B BHEE S e
RAREE T Be 5 i 2
BT R B
BERT 58 B B RIS
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14 MR AT — AAT ()

(CONTINUED)
Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity
and kind of legal entity issued share capital/ interest Held
registered capital
WHEARE T B R R B Sit=¢ 3/ CEATRAY o=t
R Yk
Shares indirectly held by the Company:(Continued)
A EIH A A (8
AL B A PE G BE Ry Beijing, the PRC, The research and US$200,000 100%
FRAE Limited liability development of drugs,
company natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological
transfer of and services
for the research and
development of biodrugs,
natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; pharmacodynamic
and clinical research of
drugs
IR E 2R BT HPEIAEE, T3 B 4E i 200,0003570 100%
BIRAT] ARTLAT RAREE A R
RS M B R
FRIRBE N B R EE 2
BT I R 2R
BRI SR R SY
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 For the year ended 31 December 2012
14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 14 PR AT — AAT () 15 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS - GROUP 15 BIERTE — A EEE

(CONTINUED)
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary U FIE RS T A FH A 2 o 46 P 7 b P I8 FH =22 e LAY
Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity diffe.rences under. the - liability met.h.od usling the 2 A LR S R A 51 o
and kind of legal entity issued share capital/ interest Held apphc;.ablc tax.atlon. rates . prevailing in  the
. . countries/places in which the Group operates.
registered capital
TSR ST S R s s A AR T CUBRTRE A/ B 25 No deferred taxation was charged to equity during the A AGRIERIE R (TR ——F: ) .
HHE A year (2011: Nil).
Shares indirectly held by the Company: The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are AR R R A T
AR EIHBR AR as follows:
M H A AR Taizhou, the PRC, The research and RMB 1,000,000 100%
AR Limited liability development of drugs, Provisions Tax loss Total
company natural drugs and synthetic s REEH AR
drugs; technological 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012
transfer of and services for TR R R CF I EF T CF—4F
the research and RMB’ 000 RMB000 RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB’ 000 RMB000
development of biodrugs, ARMFE ARMTFIE  ARTTIE ARTFIT  ARDTIL ARTTT
Emat"“fl ‘:“gs a“(isy“mfuc At 1 January w—H—H - 2,436 ; 2,904 ; 5,340
gs’_p_ ATmacOfy e Debited to the statement  fHECATH G - (2,436) - (2,904) - (5,340)
and clinical research of L
of comprehensive income
drugs
RN A B HREIZR M, WS S BrEEEE i N EEHE1,000,0007T 100% At 31 December w—H=1+—H - - - - - -
ARAF ARFAEAT] FAREE T S B
BF T B A A -
TEREE A B At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused i —:‘ﬁ:'—f:)ij =+—H, REMARHBHIA
ST R tax losses of approximately RMB11,338,000 (2011: FeHE11,338,0007C (—F——4F: IARNE11,338,000
B i 2 BEROE T M B R 5T approximately RMB11,338,000) available for offsetting TT) Zﬂi@]ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁéﬁiﬁfﬁkiﬁﬂ o HJR
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been METE AR, BN M T LR Y 2 B
. . . . = 251 38 7 . H -3
Note: None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities [ B o w4 AR R A AT JEE A AT Hep ] A A v A recognised in respect of RMB Nil (2011: Nil) of such %%fﬁfiggfis ;:;]0})\ iﬁ%;iﬁ; EEE Tﬁi
outstanding at the end of the year or any time during . losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in e s : , , .
the yeat. respect the remaining approximately RMB11,338,000 R =T/

(2011: RMB11,338,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses
are losses of approximately RMB11,338,000 (2011:
approximately RMB11,338,000) that will expire in 2016.
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16 WORK-IN-PROGRESS — GROUP EER—AEE
2012 2011
e S .S L3
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR MNE¥TIT
Work-in-progress TERE

— Cost — R4S 96,138 83,585

— provision for impairment of work-in-progress —1EE TR (78,527) (71,874)

Work-in-progress-net (a) fEEMERT 17,611 11,711

The movement in the impairment of work-in-progress for

the year ended 31 December 2012 is as follows:

EEMEE - F—F+ A=A
I

Contracted Non-contracted Total

EET# FETHI &t

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ANR¥TIT AE#TTE  ARWTIC

At 1 January A—H—A 31,325 40, 549 71,874

Provision for impairment loss Tl AEE R IR 6, 653 - 6, 653
recognised for the year

At 31 December Bm+ZA=+—H 37,978 40, 549 78, 527

The impairment for contracted work=-in-progress was due
to the exceeding of total contract cost over the total
contract value while the impairment for non-contracted

ELRT #0 FOE E  FB( E f2 Eh TR A A H
RARIEH, TIARAFTEE G ERERER B RA
SRR I AR S A F A H

work-in-progress was due to the suspension of

non-contracted PDS projects .
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The movement in the impairment of work-in-progress for
the year ended 31 December 2012 is as follows:
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FEER AL &)

AEMSE-Z -+ H =+—H#E 28
e

Contracted Non-contracted Total
[SEAE Y HAETH &t
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
ANRHEETIT ARBTTE  ARWTIT
At 1 January w—HA—H 6,593 7,858 14,451
Provision for impairment loss W AR E R 24,732 32,691 57,423
recognised for the year
At 31 December Bt+—A=+—H 31,325 40,549 71,874
17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 17 ST RLEAR — A<M B A A ]
GROUP AND COMPANY
Group AL
Financial
assets at fair
Loans and value through
receivables profit or loss Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
o
P fi TR
SHRENG 2 EREE Gl
ARHETIT ARHETIT ANRHETIT
Assets as per consolidated statement EaHBRnEEE
of financial position 31 December 2012 R _-F—_HF+_H=+—H
Trade and other receivables (excluding FRENE B R LAt LS 2k 5,577 - 5,577
prepayments) (Note 18 and 19) (EHEMAIER)  (Mhk1sTi9)
Financial assets at fair value through A RBESRER TR - 1,815 1,815

profit or loss (Note 20)

LA (fito)

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) HeMBRSSEY (i) 2,771 - 2,771
Total &5t 8,348 1,815 10,163
Assets as per consolidated statement e R EE
of financial position 31 December 2011 R-F—®&+—-H=1+—H
Trade and other receivables (excluding JRENA FRRA oAt R R 3,809 - 3,809
prepayments) (Note 18 and 19) (VEFEMAIEZ) (s
Financial assets at fair value through WA A BESBBSTES - 1,803 1,803
profit or loss (Note 20) ERERE (Fiik0)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) Bl ABlEEEY (Ha21) 6,822 - 6,822
Total &t 10,631 1,803 12,434
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17 SRETRYM - AEERAAT §)

Group (CONTINUED) AREEE ()
Other financial liabilities
Hofth =l fiF
RMB” 000
NE¥T I
Liabilities as per consolidated statement of SATEHRIIR AR
financial position 31 December 2012 R=F——4+—-H=1+—H
Convertible bonds CIEY ez 91,875
Other payables and accruals oAt AR AT 17,264
Bank borrowing (Note 26) SRATME (BitEE26) 3,000
Total Gl 112,139
Liabilities as per consolidated statement SATABIRGLR A R
of financial position 31 December 2011 R=F—+—-H=1+—H
Convertible bonds AT 106,786
Other payables and accruals A A R B AT 2 12,707
Total &t 119,493
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Company AAE]
Financial
assets at fair
Loans and value through
receivables profit or loss Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
LA I[N
BB AR FOIR
R EGR ZeEhEE ot
ANRHETIC MNEHETIT NEFETTT
Assets as per consolidated statement MR REER —F——
of financial position 31 December 2012 %+ _H=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 14)  HEHCF B A FIOE (BiEE14) 12,085 - 12,085
Other receivables (Note 19) HAb Y (MiaEe) 4,040 - 4,040
Financial assets at fair value through o A EEEIRTE 2 FC R - 1,815 1,815
profit or loss (Note 20) ZAEMERE (M)
Cash and cash equivalent (Note 21) W REGEEY (a2 59 - 99
Total &t 16,224 1,815 18,039
Assets as per consolidated statement MR FEER _—F—F
of financial position 31 December 2011 +_—H=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 14) L B B A F (P #E14) 12,085 - 12,085
Other receivables (Note 19) HA R (E19) 1,813 - 1,813
Financial assets at fair value through o EEERE G R - 1,803 1,803
profit or loss (Note 20) SRtEE (MffFh0)
Cash and cash equivalent (Note 21) Bl K SEY (FEkl) 721 - 721
Total = #t 14,619 1,803 16,422
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17 SRTRUM—AKEERAAT @)

Company (Continued) AT ()
Other financial liabilities
Hithe e
RMB’ 000
NERHETIT
Liabilities as per statement of financial HBREAR
position 31 December 2012 Bo'——f+—-A=1—H
Convertible bonds A RS 91,875
Other payables and accruals AR RE Ak B AT B H 5,400
Amounts due to subsidiaries B2 18,443
Total eat 115,718
Liabilities as per statement of financial HABRLR AR
position 31 December 2011 R-B—F+=HA=1+—H
Convertible bonds AR ESF 106,786
Other payables and accruals ot AT R B A B 1,954
Amounts due to subsidiaries i DA 17,779
Total At 126,519

18 TRADE AND NOTE RECEIVABLES - GROUP

18 RS EOR TR R — A

2012 2011

TER-TAE &R iR

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AT ARETIT
Trade receivables JEIRER 5,573 39, 216
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables T JRETERE (4, 366) (37, 780)
Note receivables TERR - 2 2,328 -
Trade receivables and note— net JEICHR AT B AR £ 2 P A 3,535 1,436

Ageing analysis of trade receivables, as at 31 December,
2012 and 2011, based on sales invoice date and net of

impairment, are as follows:\
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18 TRADE RECEIVABLES —- GROUP (CONTINUED) 18 R ERCR R — AL ()
2012 2011
S
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AE#TTE AR¥TIT
1-30 days 1-30% 241 833
31 -60 days 31 60K 11 39
61-90 days 61-90K - -
91-180 days 91-180% 585 -
Over 180 days Him180R 370 564
Total &5t 1,207 1,436
The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days to its AEEGETZ P ERER ML T K.
trade customers.
The carrying amount of trade receivables is considered as P AR ) BRTTEL AN A B (EARE . A BRI (E e
reasonable approximation to their fair value, Impairment of T T B R A R A SR R R R R
trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence JEA R [T O B E A - A SR TR Ay A
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due R BSR4 2 P B A A I
according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant AR AT A A M ERIR R MOE
financial difficulties of the debtors and default or delinquency in B o
payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable is
impaired. All of the Group’s trade receivables have been
reviewed for indicators of impairment.
In addition, some of the unimpaired trade receivables are past HAL, B REUER B AR R, HE
due as at the reporting date. Ageing analysis of trade receivables BF
not impaired is as follows:
2012 2011
- 2t <
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥TT AR¥TT
Neither past due nor impaired AT H AR SRR A FE S BR K 252 872
1-30 days past due WHA1-30 K - -
31-60 days past due A3 60 K - -
61-90 days past due HBHA61-90 K 560 -
91-180 days past due EHH91-180 K 115 -
Over 180 days past due but less than one year ETRREEE 180 KA H/ LA LAE 280 100
Over one year past due but less than two years TR 1 AEH L R 24 - 464
955 564
Total &t 1,207 1, 436

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of approximately
RMB955,000 (2011: approximately RMB564,000) were past
due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default. These
customers have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, the management believes that no impairment is
provided in respect of these balances as there have no
significant changes in the credit quality of these customers and
the balances are considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

WoFE—TFE T H=—H, BEER AR
955,0000C (—F——4: A\ R#564,00000) Bl EER
PRIRYE . BRI E 2 REAEEA R
BRI IR P . B P A ARSE B R RITE AR
$R. B LIERACER, BEE RREAN A LETHE
BIRRREG  [RZE R P N (E AR A
HAME Bt R il ul | gl 4 s i iR
LR &
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18 TRADE AND NOTE RECEIVABLES - GROUP 18 JEW R A R T R — A I¢:)) 19 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - 19 FEAHIES B B b R Ek — A 4R 8] B A A E]
(CONTINUED) GROUP AND COMPANY
As of 31 December 2012, trade receivables of approximately }?;’\::ifi_*:ﬂ“iﬂ—:ﬁ =1—H, E\El{ﬁﬁ_% %E% ':P{\ The movement in the impairment of other receivables, FHATRCR HoA g = B
RMB Nil (2011: approximately RMB7,296,000) were RRfoe (CF——F: ARMN7,296,00078) #HE 14 deposits and prepayments is as follows:
impaired and provided for. The amount of the provision was PRHedh | DREIEEE R A R ,366,00070 (ZF—
approximately RMB4,366,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011: —4: ANRiHE37,780,00070) . B IR MR 5 R
approximately RMB37,780,000). The individually impaired AT R EERR SR RS %, Rl Group Company
receivables mainly related to customers, which are in TR T B B RS AR RE M ] o L g
unexpected difficult economic situations. It was assessed that a 2012 2011 2012 2011
portion of the receivables is expected not to be recovered. —E—4p —® g —p—i —
, . L Lo ‘ RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Movement on the Group's provision for impairment of trade FEC IR A S T . _ ~ .
receivables are as follows: NEHT T NEWTIT N EWETI0 NEWTIT
012 L1 At 1 January B—H—H 11,113 - 8, 907 -
Ay o . Reversal of impairment A A IR A (2, 400) - (2, 400) -
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 Written off ﬂiﬁﬁffﬁ E‘]i‘ﬁﬁﬁ%% (6, 507) - (6,507) -
ARBTE AR Provision for impairment ZIE%’TJ?R;E Rk (a) 524 11,113 - 8, 907
] loss recognised for the (f=E8)
At 1 January “—H—H 37,780 30, 484 year (a) (Note 8)
Impairment loss of receivable recognised AT R ESCRE R A - 7,296 At 31 December B+ZH=+—H 2,730 11,113 - 8,907
during the year (Note 8) (fH7¥8)
Trade receivables written off during the year SESH SR AR R A (150 - Related parties (b) (Note 29)  BE/7 (b) (B EE29) 41 48 - -
Reversal of impairment loss of trade | RSO R R R A Amounts due from subsidiaries (b) T2 - - 1, 640 1,640
receivable (Note 6) (Hi=E6) (33,264 - Third parties 2L 6, 082 4,625 2, 400 173
Total aaf 6,123 4,673 4,004 1,813
At 31 December w+=—H=+—H 4, 366 37,780
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is R, TR S PR 3 RS The carying amounts of prepayments and other B BRI A 1A B 24 A (R
the carrying value of each class of receivables mentioned BEIEME. SRS a TR e ads 4. receivables approximate their fair values iy
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security. '
a i i a HoAth # 8,907,0007C3% 7
19 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP 19 T AP UE R A Rk — A B B A A (a) Include_d in other receivables was an .amount of (a) ﬁfﬁiﬁ?&ﬁ;ﬂi” ))\ Egﬁﬁg%%;%gﬁ Ltiﬁ%
ANDCOMPANY approximately RMB 8,907,000 due from an independent 3] ah H A : _,TJ\ N — —
TEAPUEE % E A PR AT - third party (“the debtor”) which was due on 31 December A=+—H%#. R —F2E-L4EE0ceHt T
The prepayments and other receivables are as follows: R ' 2012. The debtor was first granted the fund in 2007 for HT7, AR 3008 [l I IENCH A HEH
' the purpose of investment with an agreed term of AT G RIIE R H AT A5 77 H R
minimum annual return of 3%. There were no collaterals @Hffﬁﬁlﬂ( B AETH [ FE . A2 ] B I 1 4 RO
Group Company given to the Company. The Company had notified the R 20 HERDR AR . BEAREH, A
&M VAT debtor to settle the receivable several times before the BAfETT EE%EEJ\ 5 2,400,00070, EEEHGA
o oLl ol oLl maturity date and received no positive response. The FR%2,400,000TC FT SEA WL BT, PR e o [ g {4 2
— - —ip — i _io___q_: —ig_‘_'ﬁ amount was fully impaired in year 2011. Up to the
o T -~ . reporting date, the debtor agreed to settle RMB2,400,000
RMB ' 000 RMB ' 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 as full settlement. Management believes this RMB2,400,000
ARKTIC AR ARHT T ARWET T is fully recoverable and therefore reverse the impairment
Prepayments FEfHIR S 4,081 2, 300 - - by the same amount in 2012.
Deposits el 408 409 - - )
-i i b T « B EA SERTRE
Other receivables (a) B () 4,364 13,077 4,040 10,720 ) Tl}& amounts due are unsecured, non-interest bearingand ~ (b) R OR S SRS R E AR
without fixed repayment term.
8, 853 15, 786 4,040 10, 720
Less: provision for W IRAEEE (2, 730) (11, 113) - (8, 907)
impairment
Total &EF 6,123 4,673 4,040 1,813
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20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 20 A R EEE IR 25 R R S B — A4 W R A 20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AN EESE BB TR S — AW F Ak
PROFIT OR LOSS - GROUP AND COMPANY AT OR LOSS-GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED) 2AF] )]
The Company held financial assets at fair value through AAFP - FE—FFE+"H =+—HEH N ntE
Group and Company i N . -
A A AT profit or loss of approximately RMB 60,138,000 as at 31 {EFEIRTE ARl RE . SRl AL 40 A BEF60,138,0007T,
012 5011 December 2010 including shares of approximately RMB HbRERAEESESHEEST A NRK
— i R 55,705,000 and foreign currency bond fund of 55,705,00070 M # N FEH4,433,0007T. AT F——4F,
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 approximately RMB 4,433,000. In 2011, as the market A FIATFF Y RS E AR L, AR A IR
ARMTTE  ARMTT price of shares held by the Company dropped down S UCRET BRI N B¥47,524,000TC W04 118
Foreign currency bond fund SRR S 1,815 1,803 ?eavﬂy, the Company had‘ o sl the. all the shares %Hﬁ% - BUE, Zgé\\aﬁﬂt_tm%# E@fg%ﬂl%ﬂ]ﬁ
invested and ceased the investment in shares. The Higg st s. AT ——NFE-F
N approximately RMB 47,524,000 of loss on disposal of ——iF+ B =+ —HBEHE AR EEERB AR
Total it 1,815 1,803 financial assets at fair value through profit or loss was all B2 SRS B 477 AL 49 A EHE1,815,0000C K2 N\ R
derived from disposal of shares. Since then the Company 1,803,0007C 4 Bl 2y A B4 .
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are o aEEERES R S EA T SR E had adopted more conservative investment policy and
presented within  “investing activities” in the AR ETREITE . would only invest in foreign currency bond fund, the
consolidated statement of cash flows. Company held financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of approximately RMB 1,815,000 and RMB
Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value o EEERES IR @S EN A A EEE 1,803,000 as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 respectively
through profit or loss are recorded in “other income” in B FOSRTEA A MR TR THAR A ) HFR (Ff which was all foreign currency bond fund.
the statement of comprehensive income (Note 6). wte) .
21 CASHAND CASHEQUIVALENTS- GROUP AND COMPANY BHERBESSEY  AEBEAAT
The fair value of all financial assets at fair value through Ao R EHBERIERSR RS 2 REE TR
profit or loss is based on their current bid prices in an PGS BAERE. Group Company
active market as at the end of reporting period. AL Ay ]
2012 2011 2012 2011
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are e fEEE AR S TIEZ S aE E LIE L B! THE-TAE TE A E T ZR——4F
denominated in US dollars. 4. RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#TE ARWTIT AR®TIT ARWTIT
Gain/(loss) on disposal of financial assets through profit HEH A HEERBE TR SR L/ (8 Cash at banks and on hand SRATIF SR B R R 4 0 771 6, 822 99 721
or loss: 5
Bank balances and cash were denominated in the ST NS T Y Bk
Group and Company following currencies:
ARG M Fe A ]
Group Company
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 2012 2011 2012 2011
ARETIT ARKTT TR TR TER T ZF A
. . . , . RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Gain on disposal of foreign currency bond fund A AL W 37 355 ANE#F1 AR¥TIT ANE#T T ARETIT
Loss on disposal of Hong Kong listed shares HEFE F iR R - (47, 524)
HK dollars M 84 - 85 -
gain/(loss) on disposal, net A R EELE R R 37 (47, 169) Renminbi AE% 2,640 6,089 B B
2 SRR (1), Swiss Frane LR - 52 - 82
US dollars %7 47 721 14 689
Total CLil 2,771 6, 822 99 721
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Shown in the
Amount financial statements

Number of &5 gt AN
ordinary shares HKS$™ 000 RMB’ 000
WHEBEH T ARRTT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each R TEEO. 13 nih @
Authorised: R
At 31 December 2012 and 31 A s o L |
December 2011 =T —HEZF—F
+—-HBE=1+—H 1, 000, 000, 000 100, 000 106, 000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each R EEO. 135 uiE i)
Issued and fully paid: friEHYGE
At 31 December 2012 and RoE——E+"H=+—H 364, 308, 664 36, 431 38, 536
At 31 December 2011 M —F——F+_-_H=1+—H
A summary of the above movements in issued share IR BT RRA Y S B LU T
capital of the Company is as follows:
2012 2011
- otc 2 TR
Number of Number of
issued ordinary issued ordinary
shares of Par value shares of Par value
HK$0.1 each HK$000 HK$0.1 each HK$000
g i L PR fER T E
0.17CH AR H1H 0.1JCHIEERE  TEME
BT T IT BT W TIT
At beginning of the year Bl 364, 308, 664 36, 431 363, 511, 664 36, 351
Issue of shares upon exercise TR AT 384T - - 797, 000 80
of share options (Note (a)) 2 (ffHE @)
At end of the year HAK 364, 308, 664 36, 431 364, 308, 664 36, 431
Notes: FFE -

(a) During the year, no new share (2011: 797,000 of HK$0.1 (a)
each) was issued upon the exercise of options under the
share option scheme approved by the shareholders of the

Company.
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22 SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 22 BE &
The Company has share option schemes as at 31 AR -TEFZH =, KRN EER
December 2012, under which it may grant options to B HE R BHE T AR 2 B LABEA A R Z 7y
employees of the Group to subscribe for shares of the ARAERE, 118,800 (ZFE——4: 10,209,900) FHHE
Company. During the year, 118,800 options were lapsed [R5 M PP R 1 S T 238
pany g they P p!
(2011: 10,209,900) in connection with the cessation of
employment of certain employees and the expiry of
exercise period.
No option (2011: 797,000) was exercised during the year. AEEMERRETE (T4 797,000) HEE
In 2011, the exercise of share options yielded the o T ——M, HEITHRERERS R EER]
P ¥ )
proceeds of approximately RMB 321,000. N E#321,0007C
Movements in the number of share options outstanding AT E AR ME TR ERE R
and their related weighted average exercise prices during TR TN TR AR A I 2 SRR
the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 are as follows: mnr
Number of share options
S i F
Atl Granted Exercised Lapsed At
Exercise January during during the during the 31 December
Date of grant price Notes 2012 the year year year 2012
R AT e MR- ARERH RETRE RERE RSF—F
F—A—H +=A=+—H
20 June 2003 HK$0.32 .
—mT=EAA=HH oz 0 O 27000 ] ] ) 720000
20 June 2003 HK$0.40 ..
—gg=gxA—tE oot 0@ 1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000
2 March 2005 HK$0.52
CEREHAESATH 05T (@) 880,400 - i i 880,400
14 December 2005 HK$0.45 .
—gEHEE+—A+0E oasmre W 72:000 - - - 72.000
10 August 2006 HK$0.36
—22 ) 03675 ) 1,366,200 - - 36,000 1,330,200
10 May 2007 HK$0.625 .
—zERA+HH 0.625¥ETT: (vi) 2,873,700 - - 10,800 2,862,900
7 April 2009 HK$0.435 ..
—EBRENAGE  odswn D 699830 - - 72,000 6,926,800
Total 23,711,100 118,800 23,592,300
&t e i ) ’ T

Ee®uEXHRAAEI103



2012 4 B W&
ANNUAL REPORT

BE—Z— S+ A=1+—HIL4FE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

22 SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Fa R B ITHE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI R M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2012 4 B85
ANNUAL REPORT

WE—B— T A=t HILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

22 B (#7) 22 SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 22 B ()

Number of share options

(i)

These options are exercisable at HKS$0.40
(RMBO0.35) per share in three trenches: the

(i)

R B 2 7R 2 0. 40T (0.35 A
RW) | MHSEE: MR RR=E—

SR HE maximum percentage of options exercisable H—HZ_F£=#F+_A=+—H. _%
Atl Granted Exercised Lapsed At within the periods commencing from 1 January ENE—H—HzE2 _FFNES —H=}1—
Exercise January during duringthe  duringthe 31 December 2003 to 31 December 2003, 1st January 2004 to ARZFFHFE—H—HLME, 451LA30%.
Date of grant price Notes 2011 the year year year 2011 31st December 2004 and after 1 January 2005 are 60% 5100% FI TAT R R 1 4 Lo B R
B R Wi M@ el KRS AR Rt 30%, 60% and 100%, respectively. The options ARAT RS, RN 5 H R E ke
L shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 104F AR AR
—H—H —_H=1T—H
#—A FEAST years from the grant date,
20 June 2003 HK$0.32 .
. g — 72 - - 72 g .
CERREAENATHHE S 0328T © 9:720,000 9,720,000 (iii) These options are exercisable at HK$0.52 (i) ZHFWHBHE AT EAER 28T (046 A
20 Tune 2003 HKS$0.40 (RMB0.46) per share: the share options B |, R _FFERE-H _HE_%F—
ZEZZESNATH 040870 (&) 1,800,000 ) ) 1,800,000 exercisable within the period commencing from 2 FAE=H—H AL m k. K
March 2005 to 1 March 2015. The options shall R B 2R H AR 0FE AR AR
2 March 2005 HK$0.52 . . .
—EERE=A—H 0,520 (iii) 1,572,000 216,600 475,000 880,400 be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
- B ’ from the grant date.
oy A e 619,200 108000 439,200 72,000
- - . (iv) These options are exercisable at HKS$0.45 (iv) HE R AT EAERR0 45T (040
10 August 2006 HK$0.36 (RMB0.40) per share: the share options B |, m - FEFELFE+_H+MHHEHE
_ \ — 2,590,200 190,800 1,033,200 1,366,200 .
ZEEFRFENATH 0.36¥70 \ exercisable within the period commencing from E—TH+ A+ =0 A AT S
10 May 2007 HKS$0.625 14 December 2005 to 13 December 2015. The P B B H A E RS0 F AR
L . g (vi) 6,449,800 281,600 3,294,500 2,873,700 . . . . 2
“EFEENHATH 0.625%#7T options shall be valid and effective for a period of %
. 10 years from the grant date.
7 April 2009 HK$0.435 ..
— BB AN E+H 04350 7T (vii) 11,966,800 - 4,968,000 6,998,800 o -
(v) These options are exercisable at HKS$0.36 ) ZE R T EAER 36T (032
(RMBO0.32) per share: the share options R, IR _FFAENAHFREF—
TAW)FI 34,718,000 797,000 10,209,900 23711,100 exercisable within the period commencing from AENAIH BB A L TR . R
el 10 August 2006 to 9 August 2016. The options W B HE AR 0E AR AR
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
Notes: B : years from the grant date.
(i) These options are exercisable at HKS$0.32 () R T E LR 32ETT (0.28A (vi) These options are exercisable at HK$0.625 (vi) R AT MR 0. 6253 TT (0554
(RMB0.28) per share in three trenches: the R , UH=HTe: MoFFNFE—H (RMBO.55) per share: the share options R¥) , TR-FFLFRATHE=Z—
. . . . . Favy E = =,
maximum percentage of options exercisable —HE_HFEFNF+_H=+—H. _F=x exercisable within the period Comm‘lmcmg from ’t‘*ﬁg {L H fq il %;%ZF)& Al . AR
within the periods commencing from 1 January Fl—H AR REFE—H = —R 10 May 2007 to 9 May 2017. The options shall be R B HR HE HRFh 105 AR AR
) valid and effective for a period of 10 years from
2004 to 31 December 2004, from 1st January 2005 ZRBENFE—H—HLE, 4HIL30% 60% the grant date
to 31st December 2005 and after 1st January 2006 T2 100% 2 ] FATCEIR A 20 B PRSI A ‘
are 30%, 60% and 100%, respectively. The options Al BB B A H &R 10 (vii) These options are exercisable at HK$0.435 (vii) TR AT E A R0.4358TT (0.38A

shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the grant date.
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SENRRL R

(RMBO0.38) per share: the share options
exercisable within the period commencing from 7
April 2009 to 6 April 2019. The options shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from
the grant date.

¥, TR-FFNFENACEE-F—
NENAANHHRBEAAFTRG . &R
RS B H IR HREH0SF AR AR

BaemaEXARAAI0S



EE R B AR ITHE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI B TR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2012 FF EW S
ANNUAL REPORT

BE—Z -+ A=1+—HI4FE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 4 B @
ANNUAL REPORT

BE-Z2—HF T A=T—HI4¥E

For the year ended 31 December 2012

23 RESERVES —GROUP AND COMPANY 23 it — AR I EANT] 23 RESERVES—GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED) 23 i — AEEAEAT @)
(a) Group (a) ARSEM (b) Company (b) AT
Share- Statutory
based enterprise
payment Special Capital Statutory expansion  (accumulated
IESEIve TESErve TEServe TeEserve fund lOSSﬁS) Total ) . .
Date of grant RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 Share-based Capital Contribution Accumulated
payment reserve reserve surplus losses Total
2 RS  RIRE ERRME EAR EERX o RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB 000
ZHSfEE ARMTIC ARWTC ARWTC BEES (Rute) ARETIC N
MNRMETIE ARMETTE  ARETT LA 52 4+ BAGE P RetisE At
Z EA St AR#TIT AT IC MNEHTIT N
ARWEFIL
At 1January 2011 woF——F—H—H 3,627 6,039 1,459 3,803 6,986 5,103 16,811
At 1 January 2011 B_Fz——%—H—H 3,714 1,366 28,011 (49,719) (16,628)
T‘f'w] com]l)fehensive AR BT A - - - - - (152,435) (152,435) Total comprehensive income AL LM A BT - - - (131,929) (131,929)
income for the year for the year
Transactions with owners HTE RS
Issue of ordinary shares upon AT (S R B Ty - - 275 - - - 275 Transactions with owners BT &8
exercise of share options Issue of ordinary shares upon AT R I - 275 - - 275
Exercise of share options (R (84) - 34 _ _ _ - exercise of share options S—
Empl h tion benefits i ELI B F] 377 _ _ _ _ _ 377 Exercise of share options 1T L (84) 84 - - -
mployee share option benetr R Employee share option benefits JE BRI ER 377 - - - 377
Total transactions with owners B[ &3 545 293 - 359 - - - 652 . . S .
Total transacti th i S - -
At 31 December 2011 and WoF—FE+—H o T o R e kot d L 2 2% 8o
1 January 2012 =t—HE 3,920 6,039 1,818 3,803 6,986 (157,538) (134,972) At 31 December 2011 and 1 Ro-F——F+-A=+—H 4,007 1,725 28,011 (181,648) (147,905)
L January 2012 N ey
Total comprehensive income AAEFE AT 28 AwT Total comprehensive income AR LM A BT - - - 12,053 12,053
for the year for the year
Transactions with owners BT HHNAES - - - - - 3,207 3,207 . . .
Eumployee shareapton benefits At AMLAR 1 365 : : : : - 365 Eloree e opionboctts RERER
Transferred to statutory reserve w2 E AR - - - 18 - (18) - fopioyes share opuon benell ’ 363 . B B 365
Acquisition of subsidiary HEE R B A - - - - - (1,480) (1,480) Total transactions with owners B E NS B Et 365 R _ _ 365
Total transactions with owners B A ERT 365 - - 18 - (1,498) (1,115) At 31 December 2012 o m— A 4372 1,725 28,011 (169,595) (135,487)
+ZH=1+—H
At 31 December 2012 WoFE-ZEFZA=1—H 428 6,039 1,818 3,821 6,986 (155,829) (132,880)
Statutory reserve LA
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Pursuant to the Company Law of the PRC, articles of

association and board resolutions of the Company, the
Company provides 10% from its net profit for the year
determined in accordance with China Accounting
Standards for the statutory surplus reserve until the

balance of this reserve reaches 50% of the paid-up share

capital. Statutory surplus reserve can be used to reduce

any losses incurred or to increase share capital of the

Company. Statutory surplus reserve balance should not
fall below 25% of the registered capital after any such

shares issuance.

IR B A FIE R AR A T R, AL R
AR e B O U e R 2 ¥ B Y 1090 2 L ZE ¥ SE
AR, EEIEEARUEL| AN TR A 50005
ke FREARA RERSBAFENER (MFH)
B A A TR, R A B AEN
R AR DR A A T AR 25%.
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RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY(CONTINUED) 23

Statutory enterprise expansion fund

As stipulated by the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
the subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC
shall appropriate 5% or 10% of its net profit after tax as
the statutory enterprise expansion fund. The director shall
have discretion in determining the percentage within the

range specified by the relevant PRC laws and regulations.

Special reserve

The special reserve represents the differences between
the nominal value of the shares of VP (BVI), the
company which was the holding company of the other
members of the Group prior to the Group Reorganisation,
and the nominal value of the company’s shares issued
thereof pursuant to the Group Reorganisation.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the additional
contributions made by the shareholders of the Company
prior to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange and the additional contributions made by the
minority shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company
during the year.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the net assets of the subsidiaries and
the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange thereof pursuant to the Group Reorganisation.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders comprise share premium, capital reserve,
contributed surplus and accumulated profit. In
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
dividends shall be payable out of the profit or other
reserves, including the share premium account, of the
Company and, under the Companies Law (2002
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the Company must be
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business immediately following the distribution of
dividend.
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24 HAeWBAEREAERNE - AEEAEATF

COMPANY
Group Company
ALEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
FE O ZFF —EFE T CFE o F
AR#TT AR¥TT ANE#TIT ARWTT
Other payables HAtREATE 13, 621 6, 830 3,818 245
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAFFAT] - - 18, 443 17, 779
Accrued expenses iD= ¢l 3, 643 5, 877 1, 582 1, 709
Total &F 17, 264 12, 707 23, 843 19, 733
Related parties(a) (Note 29) BT (a) (FflE29) 2,793 387 3,573 -
Subsidiaries T - - 18, 443 17, 779
Third parties vl 14, 471 12, 320 1,827 1, 954
Total & 17, 264 12, 707 23, 843 19, 733
(a) The amounts due are unsecured, non-interest bearing and ~ (a) Jlid .3 {E NN SVIE L SR Pl
without fixed repayment term.
25 CONVERTIBLE BOND - GROUP AND COMPANY 25 RIS — A AR AT
Group and the Company
AEE R AR ]
2012 2011

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
TR ZR—4F
ANE#TIT ARETT

Current ]

Non-current EifiE)

- 106, 786

91, 875 -

At 31 December 2012, the carrying amount and fair
value of the convertible bonds for the Group and the
Company amounted to approximately RMB91,875,000
(2011: approximately RMB 106,786,000).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company’s convertible bonds are denominated in

Swiss Francs.

WoFE—TFE+ T H=+—H, REEMEAFL
R IR TR A A o EAE K = AR
91,875,0000C (_F——F: AEH106,786,0007C) »

A B T 2w Y AT 6B AR5 B i 1 LA B - 35 B AR
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25 CONVERTIBLE BOND - GROUP AND COMPANY 25 T — AL EMAMARAT ()
(CONTINUED)
The movement of the convertible bonds are as follows: CIE g e =g I
Group and the Company
ARSI A ]
2012 2011
RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
e
ARETT AR¥TT
At beginning of the year HA4] 106, 786 108, 005
(Gain)/loss arising on revaluation — FJ#REFFEM (BF) /EEH (16, 283) 4,546
of convertible bond
Exchange realignment it = 1,372 (5, 765)
At end of the year iR 91, 875 106, 786

On 10 September 2007, the Company, issued bonds of an
aggregate principal amount of CHF15,000,000. Unless
previously redeemed, repurchased and cancelled or
converted, any outstanding convertible bonds shall be
redeemed at the redemption amount (110% of the
principal amount outstanding of the convertible bonds)
on the date falling on the fifth anniversary of the date of
issue of the convertible bonds. The bonds bear interest at
the rate of 3.5% per annum and payable annually.

On 4 September 2012, an extraordinary resolution was
passed by the majority of bonds holders in accordance
with the terms of the convertible bonds to approve the
extension of the convertible bonds to 10 September 2015
with an increase in interest rate from 3.5% to 4% per
annum. The extension of the convertible bonds was also
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 20 September
2012.

The conversion price shall be in Swiss Francs that will be
equivalent to 130% of the average closing prices of the
shares of the Company as published in the daily quotation
sheets published by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited for 30 consecutive trading days up to and
including the fifth business day prior to the closing date
per share.
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WoFEFLFNLATH, AATBITAERES
15,000,00054 H-IERB 282 ( [MEZ2) ) o BRIGHIT
By LUER e ey st , ARA AT
P A 2 B4 T 1 3058 OB AR 1 LA Rl & 8 ()
BRI AR SR AI110%) EEMEAER
RS TR LE R ET A, B4
Zft, EEFEBIS%.

MoR—TEJLANE, FRESRRG AR
HUBAR R b A RAIGE TR B R T I A T T
RN E —F—HELH+H, MHBZFEH
A3 503 N 4% AT HR 25 A RE RIS AN F]
AR — R — AU A AR )

P AR ARG L R AS 5. AR IR B RS
W H TSR TLE TAE H (B 4E R H) L EE = T
& 0 AL mE R B LA v fg H s R Frie 2 F
P (E T 130%-
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25

CONVERTIBLE BOND - GROUP AND COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

The bondholders will have the right to convert, at the
conversion price, the whole of the principal amount of the
convertible bonds into shares at any time and from time to
time, from the date of issue of the convertible bonds.

Bondholders may at any time during the period on or after
the date of issue of the convertible bonds and prior to the
close of business on the maturity date or (i) if the Company
shall have exercised its rights to redeem the convertible
bonds (tax redemption or early redemption), then up to the
fifth business day preceding the date fixed for such
redemption, (ii) if the Company shall be in breach of its
obligations under the terms of the convertible bonds (event
of default), then up to the time when the convertible bonds
become due and repayable to convert, at the conversion
price, the whole or any part of the convertible bonds held by
the bondholders into conversion shares.

The carrying amounts of convertible bonds approximated
their fair value. The fair value of the Bonds was determined
by the directors with reference to a valuation report carried
out by an independent valuer on 31 December 2012.

As at 31 December 2012, the fair value of the liability
component, included in non-current borrowings, of the
convertible bonds was calculated using effective interest
method at the rate of 14.00%.

As at 31 December 2012, the fair value of the derivative
component of the convertible bonds was calculated using
the Monte Carlo Simulation Model. Any change in the
major inputs into the Monte Carlo Simulation Model will
result in changes in the fair value of the derivative
component.

The change in fair value of the convertible bonds during the
year resulted in a gain from changes in fair value of
approximately RMB 16,283,000 (2011: loss of
approximately RMB 4,546,000), which has been recorded
as “gain/(loss) on revaluation of convertible bonds” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Interest and other expenses of approximately
RMB3,715,000 (2011: approximately RMB3,851,000) has
been recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
in respect of the convertible bonds for the year ended 31
December 2012.

25
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N R TP B AR 3 40 (R 2 T A < R T
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FFRFEA AT ZE R B R AT HR B 2 28, IFAE
FIH BB SR R BIR  Z ETRER, BE )
A FA TR Rl AT R s (RO [m) B R )
ZHER], RIEZERMEZ HATHSRMEEER;
(ii) FAwhER R AR AR R AT (&
k) | REEITER 5 2 HIEE R, Rk
MO BT A N A ) iR S AT 4
TR R R R o

w A (R N IR T (E PR A AR (B AR . AR
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Hia RAEmEfERT) A REET LIEEF|
I (14.00%)FH .

RoH—-—FE+TH =0, &R ESRNAT
£ TEE 12 A EE T PAMonte Carlo Simulation
FEEIFTR . Monte Carlo Simulationt&HY fh B E 24
MM E A AT RS AT 4 TR A A EEM
&5,

AT B BT R AR S 1 A A E SIS R )
B N\ EH16,283,00070 (ZF——5F: HE AR
4,,546,00070) , WEFAFELE W RES [Fik
Fa i AR HEW.
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26 SHORT TERM BANK BORROWING (CONTINUED) 26  Ssjiféak (80 27 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 27 REBELBSHE
Group and the Company 2012 2011
AERE B AT RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
2012 2011 :g_.:ﬁ :gj:_._.E
RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000 ARBTIT AR¥TIT
—R——f %
ABRHTIE ARMTIT
Operating cash flow before movement in working capital B ) (591) (15,112)
Bank borrowing SHHERE 3000 -
— Increase in work-in-progress —1F 2 S (12,553) (10,285)
A subsidiary of the Group established a short term bank AEE—TETARRPE TSR T &ES —(Increase)/decrease in rade receivables — MWL B Bl () /b (1,949) 1,615
borrowing with Industrial and Commercial Bank of China AR¥00E TG RIfE R, FIESEPEA RS —Decrease in prepayments and other recivables — T HRaR Bt R 426 26,258
(Asia) Limited in China with amount of RMB3,000,000. FH R R R . 20135426, ATMEE — Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals — Al A 3 AL AT B () /i 3.548 (2,745)
The borrowing bears interest at a variable rate based on the THP 508 AN BREMEZ. B s0E A BEEER — Increase in receipts in advance — Bl n 8,329 11,925
Bank’s Prime Rate. The borrowing is secured by a personal HE20134F6 H 18 H 241,
guarantee of a director of the Group. RMB1,500,000 has Cash (used in)/generated from operations B EE (R /B Bl (2,790) 11,656
been settled on 26 April, 2013 as the first instalment of
ff?;n;:z; ;;E Zmﬂin::foidﬁ;‘ﬁﬁﬁgﬂe: setlled a) Major non-cash transaction a) BARFRESHZR
There was no material major non-cash transaction during 2012, PR F— AR E AR SN 5. AR
27 CASHGENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 27 REEEBSHE In 2011, the Group entered into current account offsetting SRR R T AR R, R
agreements with its related parties in related to the other At R e At A 3K A 29 A RS54, 064, 00070
20,12 20,11 receivables and other payables with the amount approximately
RMB™ 000 RMB" 000 {0 RMBS54,054,000.
B .
AETT ARETT 28 Operating lease commitments 28 BB R
Profit/(loss) before income tax AT EA/ (ER) 3231 (149,772) At the reporting date, the Group had commitments for ARG H, REFRREHAMES. Ll EEFHAR
Adjustments for: AR future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable AR B A AR IE R AR R KA S R
— Depreciation (Note 12) —r# (HEEL2) 2,713 2,584 operating leases in respect of machinery, land and
— Dividends income — BB (42 (106) buildings which fall due as follows
— (Gain)/loss on revaluation of convertible bonds (Note 25) —n[ R ESREAMN ERD /R (EE25) (16,283) 4,546
— Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (Note 6) — WM. B AR G (6D (56) (54)
— Exchange loss/(gain) —E 5% (548 / 3R 1,373 (4,060)
— Impairment loss on work-in-progress —7EE R E R 6,653 57,423 20}2 20)1 1
— Impairment loss on other receivables — Hofth fE GRS 4R 524 11,113 RMB" 000 RMB" 000
— Impairment loss on propetrty, plant and equipment (Note 12) —MEE. R RRERAEE (i) - 3,243 —E T R
— Gain /(loss) on disposal of financial assets at fair —iE A REAEREE R EMEE 37 47,169 ARMETIT AR
value through profit or loss (Note 20) A () (BiHRT20) No later than 1 year —4ER 420 334
— Provision for impairment loss of trade receivables (Note 18) — W IR R (HEEEL8) - 7,296 Later than 1 year and no later than S years Bl EEE A 390 480
— Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables — PR AR IR 1R K 4 [l (150) - Later than 5 years MR AR - 30
— Reversal of impairment loss on other receivables — HoAb RECR A R A R HE [E] (2,400) -
— Interest expenses (Note 7) —FEER (HED 3,768 4,940
— Interest income (Note 7) —FBEN (EET) (22) (298) Total LEr 810 844
— Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets at fair value — i A BRI IR SRS E A (227) 487
through profit or loss FEEEEEF/ (ER)
— Employee share option benefits (Note 9) —{& B AR (PHET9) 365 377
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29
(a) The following transactions were carried out with related (a)
parties:

B B AR ITHE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5

RN T BEZEA RIEN L2 G T

Nature of transactions Nature of transactions

2011 2010
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

I 2 ] ot E
e T
AR®TIT ARETT
S () AR AH Rental expense 120 120
Post market services income 5.300 }
AR (e rg) H IR A HEEA 120 120
T TSR A 5,300 -

Those related parties are under common control of a
director, Mr. William Xia GUO, of the Company.

FESEA I A A A F) — i A S R

(b) Save as disclosed above, as at the reporting date, the (b) TR HBA, AR B B 5 BT B KA 2k
Group had the following major balances with its related K
parties:
2012 2011
RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
—g——% —F—F
ARWTT ARWTIT
Prepayment : TAA R
Other related parties HC At ] B 2 ) 12 12
Other receivables: HoAih IR -
Other related parties HoAth [ B A ) 29 36
Other payables: A AT
Amount due to RS HEERTERAIRAF AR B A R A F) 393 387
Amount due to HFFHLEE (iR HIRAH JEAT R R (M) FIRAE] 806 -
Amount due to ALITEAfEABEELEMIH AR AR B E S Byt E IR A 658 -
Amount due to JLEALYBERFHRAF Bt E LA YBERE FRAR 919 -
Other related parties TEAT HoAh B B2 5] 17 -

Those related parties are under common control of a
director, Mr. William Xia GUO, of the Company.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group has no
significant contingent liabilities.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in
order to conform with the presentation of current year.
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T BB
FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS £
Year ended 31 December
BE+ A=+ —HIkEE
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
TEENE TR e TEeEE TE T
RMB’ 000 RMB” 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
NEHETIT MNRHTIT PN ARWTIE  ARWTT
Turnover B 39, 186 47, 308 37, 687 18,099 28,688
Profit/(loss) before tax BRARATHA/ OEHD (27, 242) 6, 310 (55, 422) (149, 772) 3,231
Income tax I 9,930 (277) (1, 838) (4, 024) (113)
Profit/(loss) after tax before  BEFMB{EARFTIEEEHIMEA (17,312) 6,033 (57, 260) (153, 796) 3,118
non—controlling interests HRER/ (D
Non—controlling interests AEFEGIRE A 958 243 332 1,361 89
Profit/(loss) for the year FBR AR T RE A 48 2 A (16, 354) 6, 276 (56, 928) (152, 435) 3,207
after non—controlling interests FEHEA/ (D
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERARE
Asat 31 December
AT H=T—HILFE
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
RN ZEREAE R T e
RMB" 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB" 000 RMB’ 000
ANERETT MNREETT PN S AR#TIE AREMTT
Total assets less current A48 % 2 R £ 172, 141 191, 237 164, 330 (96, 752) (2,312)
liabilities
Non current liabilities JemEy A K (65, 785) (78, 333) (108, 005) - (91,875)
(Corporate bonds payable) (HEAT AT {EF)
Non—controlling interests g 2 (1, 620) (1,377) (1, 045) 316 (157)
Shareholders’ funds JiGE T 2 104, 736 111, 527 55, 280 (96, 436) (94, 344)
Notes to the financial summary: up g dliee ey

The results for each for the five years ended 31 December 2012 have
been prepared on a combined basis to indicate the results of the Group
as if the Group structure, at the time when the Company’s shares were
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, had been in existence throughout the years
concerned. The results for each of the four years ended 31 December
2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011 have been extracted from the
corresponding audited annual financial statements.

This financial summary indicates the consolidated results of the
Company and its subsidiaries with effect from 1 January 2008 or since
their respective dates of incorporation or acquisition, whichever is a
shorter period. The consolidation statement of financial position at 31
December 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 are the combination of
the statement of financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
at 31 December 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012. In the opinion of
the directors, the resulting consolidated financial statements give a
more meaningful view of the results and state of affairs of the Group

as a whole.
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LBEZF DT H =+ AR SR O
FEOFEEHEGRN, LA AR 2 S A 20 w) [ Ay £ 7 R I
B GIERA FRIZER LR E—EAE. BE-FF/NE
CEFNE, CF-RENTFE - FF T H A HIREE
R A SRR E A B AR R

KM BB AL T R H AR 8 —FF/N\F—H—HBL
W& BRSO SO B (LIBOE FiaE) LIsRZ&E
. MOFFNE. ZFTNE ZF—FF ZF——R
R+ A S B2 R MBRILRT AR w R
BAFRZFFNE. ZFFNFE ZF—FF ZF——R
R AS - HZMBRERZ A0 TR,
Fit R SRS M BRI 1 2 Bl ARG 2 SR B R



